








" P-H-0-E-N-IX PETROLEUN FHIEIPPINES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS O COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2044, Y013 ANT) 2012
(dmounts in Philipping Pesos)

) Moy - 2014 ‘ 2013 nz
REVEINUES - ) . . ‘ ‘ .
Sale of goods, : 26 P 34,150,287,928 BOoANIY60L819 0 - P 34,080,171,52
Chacter fees ) 2 ' 392,681,626 203,235,733 2011, 813,541
Nt and-ssraps income ) 100,583,267 208,786 118,205,470
Tortrevedues - 3 84,647,031 65,206,403 54,385,910
 Puel zeevice and viher wyenues ‘ z 56,184,644 (2648613 135,885 455
-34,734,384,496 43,551,086,354, 34,585,352,305 -
" COST AND EXPENSES . .
Costof sales and sirvices o 2 31,404,503,538 40,248,166;044 31,961,749, 413
Selling-and administrative oxpenses 2 1,916,826,177 1,891,460, 138 1,473,661,600
33,321,330;142 42,230 626 22 33435411019
'DTHER CHARGES (INCOME) ‘ ,
Findnce costs ‘ ] . 804,137,696 665,930,004 519,720,493
Nimaneincome - 1 { 3,394,843) ¢ HABLE7Y) 24,629,351
‘O ihieri ‘ o ( 5,842,368y  ( 146251135 16,133,536
793,900,685 645,023,374 478,957 586
' FROFST BEFORE Tax . o ' _ ‘ '619,153:609 G66,456,758 671,183,700
"TAX EXPENSE - . T 2,790,727 1379153 - 19,873,515
"NETPROFMIT . -0 . T L GIBSERSIZ. GgmasTefs’ . ast3jdase

| OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME {LOSS)

. Treme thacwill ot be.reclasmified ‘

‘ sabscgquendly 1o profii or loss ) : - - o : o

‘Revaliabvi of 1amkery -~ C o 130,637,550 . 6,847,458 3,607,097
Remeasusemanizof pust-esnplogmnent ‘ : )

defined betiefit obligatun’ m 2073y aemey ¢ 13,306707)
" Taxexpense R % (__ 2933381y 1L,109.838) (. __95;550,09()
Other Comprehensive hoome «négoftan’ . . - 120,085:546 - Y Y. 7
TOTAL, commmsnsﬂ*nmdqmu ‘ o P 73648818 P 681647972 B #74.200.361 .
Basic-and Dilwed Carings per ohare . F pa0 - F T g » 043

Sew-Notes tn Consolidased Finaneiil Seilemerits



P-H-O-E-N.L.X PETROLEUM PHILIPPINES, INC, AND SUDSIDIARIES
LONSOLIDATED STATEMENTE OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THIL YILARS BNDED DECEMBER 91, 2014,20i3 ANI 2012
{Arttouiits in Philippine Pesos) .

Moreg 2084 Zm iz
EASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIRG ) R ,
Froftbefure i ) r 15,1840 Y 664,435,755 P eLranT
© Adpzonenisfors T .

- Iniecest expénse . 22, 720,178,095 BiT,451 997 447,358,205
Depteciztiane and. afnpetization N 660,281, :5 5284 405,815,569
Iadpraierien Joynes ‘12 A00TTAGH 17,959,202 37,851,057
fratereg income n {33083y { BaB1ET7Y A0FGT 002y

Cprerating pralit I:cfmnwu:king'mpiml'cbal.lgus 2,M4,2963% 1,821,766,287 1,571,640,338
Ancreisdin trade and othier eceivables - ( 24,945,720 ) { ﬁ,w4;75i!,[]f}9) { V29,368,304
Decrw fncfin) ininvenioticy 541,703,604 ( 12, 7r2.897) { 1,556137,271 3
Deqmran (inceease] in Tand held for salé and land :
development costs . . 17,586,563 { 1,643,015 { 50,443,491 )
Lrecrease {increase) a zestricted depasite 25,012,003 o 12,728,617 ) ( 13,667,142

. lncreasedn input-yalie-addud tay { - 154,710,691) { SERGVATIY 146,461,101 )
Uirgave itf prepapmants and ethec current assers { 656,719,365 ) ¢ . igsizess) { T6,150,570 3
! in installment eontdct 1égeivabl B . 9,002,788

o Inerease (decieaxe) intrade and.oher pajables Z,064,142,668 25,322,143 { 1530482888
Crsh generared. i fused in) uperatiims . -3,152, 356,580 ( L30224304) Z;SQB,D&‘LP% )
Lash paidl for ineume taxky ( 618,696 ) { 1685360) ¢ 564,033 )
" det (ash From {Used T} Operating Activides -3,851,745,593 14 2362,859564) 258,621,126 )
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING AGTIVI TS
Acquisftiony dEproperty and wpipment 12 { 2973 30.550) 2053008424) 101,021,187
Increase i ather non-cuneatassety { 122,883,739) (. 140078,003) ¢ 184,693,002
Inzeease i lind beld for ftue deiclopmint. L 4,675,215 ) ( BRG4,054 ) { TT0TG305)
Advances w related parties 26 ¢ 10,375,336y ¢ V73607 | 9,467,414
FRRetdar seceived 2,750,097 TAA03 N 9 400,441
Coilections fram mlated paities 25 ’ 2,747,994 22,814,084 21479102
Frurceekly fruen dispeal 60 property and equipment 549,543 . 1,834,385 _ LATaned
Met Lash Used in Investing Activites ' {___26512H)  ( ZIHBIZOBET  [__ 4,072,657953)
CASES FLOWS FROM MNANCING ACTIVITIES ‘ .
' pmmds,rr,nm193;1.':(9;.;& intereat. bearing iums,anamunymp- ‘ | 3%,B06,960,672 29.537,925,9G) 20,250, 8YZ,075
. Repayment of ipezeicblaring loans and boreitrings (. BIHVEB0%)  ( heoll BT ¢ 16,277,880 4457
ntendst pal : R | 798,899,617) CRBEO3AAT) (0 545207485
- Bayoeots olcl dhvdanide . 0 L ‘ o o 4 1samgsy WEM2Y WG A87,242 )
© Incrénds {duresac)-in ot dan' dient lxsiirids e ; o Co5adIR) 3951702 225,101 428
Repayments o refaled pardes . . - wo. Y 16,986518) ABOM2) (15364099}
Praceeds-liom Beusnce of shages 0 Eaack F1d - 1.509,1%2,990 -
Libceedy hom boewings fom wlated perici N - o - . 177458, 108
+MetLash From (Usgd ) Pinancing Addvities. ' : (. 1,093418750) 3LA78,201 B 3645701501
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) 1N CASH : ‘ ) v
AND CASH EQUIYALENTS - 198,2R8,200 { BTy ¢ 485,297,578
CASHLAMD CASH BQUIVALENTS
- AT BEGINNING OF YEAT, o ‘ 267,220,520 438510997 924,405,513
CASH'ANE CASH EQUIYALENTS : : . :
AT END'OFYEAR . ' a ' ‘P, 555,408,730 ¥ .isazzn& P 419 510,907
Suppl 1l afdfmaton on ?-‘ megnmh [nweatig wnd Finameing Aetivities; -

i) Sirek dividlendn déclared and dighibuired by i Geoup amawitted (o 7D o 201 4 P529.7 millivi in Z01Y and P244.9 millicus in 12 {sve Mole-2n.6).

3 i Jaly 6, 2102, the Dodrd'uf Ditactors of the TPasent Cympany sprroved the scquisitiop ol 100% shares of miock of Chelsea Shipping Carp. (CS0) v’ .
" hard-Firahate rwiip, The ayreed prischzsn.pecte amownted (o 1,570 fdlion pryable ar 90% jslance oF new camnun ghares of the Pasent Company and 10%
racli; " Aciordingly, 1774 millisn new Copiuier shites wind wsid i Doy nf Lidénna. Management & Resourees Cor, a related! [rariy under comman contol” The
" nequisiaui af CSC is accpuned. for ar businest combination tising punling.SFintersst tethad (see Mot 13 md 22.3), . . .

3) t:ar;.«;n,hnming'mq heayy pquiperient with currying atmount of P13.5 million, D217 millign knd 255 milicn ae of Ldcceeriber, 11, 201§, 2013 nd 20 12, esprerisely,

are cacefed cider finanes Iesses (gee, Nates 12.5; 17,6 and'30.5), ' e .

. A ‘The Goodp's nkets were eévilled by s'm"ihd;péridmt appraizer in exch year from. 2004, Revalnation tefctves amz-u;xﬁed 1o 1079 million, P2A5.6 millicn
" P29 2 million g of Decembar 3, 2014, 2013 and 2012, zesmectively (ee Notes 122 and 7.5,

%) Intecest puymenis amototiog 1.7, milion, 3714 wllion.and P77Hmilisn in 2044, 2013 and 2012, coxpectively, serecapitalized as pent,
. ulthe cost vl pruperty and equipment (szc Mok 123 -and £7),

Rer Neites to Consolifared Finxncia! Stiicments,
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Punongbayan & Araullo

An instinct for growth

Repoit of Independent
Certified Public Accountants
to Accompany Supplementary Information meawmecms

£765 fyrlar fienue

Required by the Securities and Exchange sy

. . . ) ilippines
Commission Filed Separately from the 282 550 2088
. . » B Fa Y 3506
BaS]'C Flnancla‘l Statements wquililgfgba:a%Earaéﬂln.cum

The Board of Directors

P-H-0-E-N-I-X Petioleun Phﬂlppineq, Ine, and Subsidiaries
Stella Hizon Reyes Road

Barrio Pampanga, Davao City

We have audited in aceotdance with Philippine St rmc’f?ids on ‘\%ﬂng, the
consolidated financial statexnents of P-H-0.E-N- I-&Betro]rmm Phjltppmcs Inc. and
Subsidiaties (the Group) for the year ended Deu,mbur-_’xl 2014y 0&1’ which we have
-requlered our teport dated February 11, 2015, -Our andit wis madé,‘?fm the purpose of
: fmmmg an opinion on thehasic ¢omsalidated ﬁnanuﬂf“ ;tatcmnn‘tag‘iakma as 2 whole,
The applicahle supiplementiry nfortation (see List of Supj slem y Inforiiaticon)
Ay presented for putposes-of additional analysis in wmﬁhancg withitlre requireinents
of the Securities Regulaton Code Rule 68 (as amende cf)i.and aretitia required pat of
the basic consalidated financial statements prepated in 48¢os th Phﬂlppme
Financial Reporting Standards. Such supplementary mfc"“firfgﬁlaﬁ 4lg the tesponsibility
of the Group’s management. The supplementary informgfonhidve; cen subjecred to
‘the audlung prot_cdm‘es apphf.d in the audit of the basic detsslidated fnancial
' statements and, in our .opinion, are faicly stated in all matetial Tespects in relation to
‘the basic t_onmhdatcd financial statemicnts taken as a whole,

PUNONGBAYAN & ARAULLO

CPA Reg. No. (095626
TIM 906-174-039 ‘
PTR No. 4748317, January 5, 2015, Makati City
SEC Group A Au.rc.r_lnatlon
Partner » Noj, (28 AR2 (artil %pt, 5, 20]6)
Cizg - No, 0002:FI1R-3 (uatil Max. 31, 2015)
BIR AN 08-002511.22-2013 (undlNov. 7, 2016)
Fimn's BOA/PRE Cast, oF Reg, Mo: 0002 (und! Dea, 31, 2015

Gertified Pulilie Apcoimmants
PEA (3.0 impeatret G wedhuin Girant Thomlan laha-slonal L

i i1 Celi, Twnd, Cawte 'FL‘bIlJE\I)’ 11, 2015
DGR Cerl of T, Nl 0002 !
S0 Grevi A Ateridiation X0 IRE2FR 3
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P-H-O-E-N-I-X Petroleurn Philippines, Iuc. and Subsidiaries
LIST OF SUPPLEMENTARY SCFHEDULES
DECEMBER 31, 2014

Deseritition - Pap
Finanelal Asscts N/A

Amiouats Receivable fiom Divectors, Officers, Employees, Related Parties,
and Principal Stockhélders (Other thin Relared Partics) . 1

Amounts of Receivable Frormn Related FParties which are Eliminated during:

the Counsolidanon of Financial Statements 2
Intangible Assets- Orher assets 3
Long=Term Debt 4-7

Indebredness to Related Patties {Long-leom loans from related Companies) N/A

Guaranteas of Securitivs of Other Issvers MN/A
Capital Sroclt : ' 6
Reconciliation of Rétained Farnings Awailable for Dividedd Declacation 7
Mapping of the Organizacd Structuee 8
Schedule of Philippine Financial .R&pmr‘ing‘ Standards 911

4
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P-H-Q-E-N-I-X PETROLEUM PHILIPPINES, INC, AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash cquivalents
Trade and othcr teceivahles - net
Tuventories

Land held for salc and Iand development costs

Due from related partes
Reateicted deposits
Input value-added tax - net

Prepayments and other current assets

Total Cutrent Assets

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property and equipment ~ net
Land held foc future development
Investment in 2n avsociate
Goodwill - net
Other non-catrent assets

Toral Non-carrent Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND EQURTY

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
Trade and cther payahles
Due to related parties

Total Cuzeent Liabilitics

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Interest-beating loans and borerovwings
Deferred tax liabilities - nct

Other non-cuceent liabilitics
Total Non-cucrent Liabilities
Total Liabilides

EQUITY
Preferred stock
Common stocl
Additienal paid-in capital
Revaluation reserves
Orther rescrves
Retained eacnings

Total Equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

DECEMEER 31, 2014 AND 2013
(Amounts in Plilippine Pcsos)

Notes

2014

2013

P 555508720
7,832,712,191
2,970,829,069

485,985,811
10,573,356
70,406,743

603,608,754

1,146,632,540

i 357,220,520
7,343,793,926
3.812,532,673

503,672,474
2,747,994
95,419,646
448,838,093
489,913,177

13,576,057,214 13,054,138,503
10,688,608,904 8,628,490 469
312,617,496 297,942,281
2,250,000 2,250,000
84,516,663 84,516,663
336,110,518 270,215,050
11,424,103,581 9,283,414,463

P 25,000,160,795

P 22,337,552,966

P 8,479,025,750

T 8,207,229, 484

3,734,569,995 1,570,427,527
17,204,725 64,161,243
12,230,800,470 9,841,818,054
5,363,617,647 5,544.500,333
71,872,184 76,530,691
283,644,395 376,789,584
5,719,134,226 5,997,829 608
17,949,934,6% 15,439,647,662
5,000,000 5,000,000
1,428,777,232 1,428,777.252
3,367,916,714 3,367,916,774
372,138,419 272,621,771
622,952,239)  ( 622,952,219))
2,499,345,913 2,046,541,766
7,050,226,099 6,407,905,304

P 25,000,160,795

P 22,337,552,966

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.



P-H-0-E-N-I-X PETROLEUM PHILIPPINES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014, 2013 AND 2012
{Amaunts in Philippine Pesos)

Noigs 2014 2013 2012
REYENUES
Sale of goods 26 P 34,100,287,928 T 43,139,691,819 P 34,080,171,520
Charter fecs 2 302,681,626 205,235,733 201,813,941
Rent and storage income 30 104,583,267 79,208,786 113,205,47¢
Port revenues 2 84,647,031 65,206,403 54,385,910
Fuel service and ather revenues 2 56,184,644 62,043,613 135,885,455
34,734,384,496 43,551,986,354 34,585,552,305
COST AND EXPENSES
Cost of sales and services 30 31,404,503,935 40,248,166,084 31,961,749,413
Selling and administeative expenses 2 1,916,826,177 1,991,460,138 1,473,661,606
33,321,330,112 42,239,626,222 31435411019
OTHER CHARGES (INCOME)
Finance cosis 22 804,137,896 669,030,004 519,720,403
Finance income 22 ( 3,394,843 ) ( 8,481,577 ) ( ‘ 24,622,351 )
Others ¢ 6,842,368)  { 14,625,113} ( 16,133,556 )
793,900,685 645,923,374 478,957,586
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 619,153,699 666,436,758 071,183,700
TAX EXPENSE 25 2,790,727 1,379,153 19,873,548
NET PROFIT 616,362,972 665,057,605 ) 651,310,152
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
Items that will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss
Revaluation of tankers 21 180,637,550 0,847,558 331,807,047
Remeasurements of post-employment
defined benefit obligation 23 ( 31,217,153)  ( 3,147,836)  ( 13,306,797 )
Tax expense 25 ( 29,334,251) ( 1,109,855) ( 95,550,091 3
Other Comprehensive Income - net of tax 120,085,546 2,589,667 222,950,209
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME P 736,448,518 P 667,647,272 P« 874,260,361
Basic and Diluted Eamings per share 28 P 0.40 I (.45 P 0.48

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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P-H-0-E-N-I-X PETROLEUM PHILIPPINES, INC, AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014, 2013 AND 12012
{Amonnts in Philippine Pesos)

Notes 2014 2013 ) 2M2

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit hefore fx P 619,153,600 p 666,436,738 P 671,183,700
Adjustmien For:

Interest expense n ‘728,178,009 617,451,997 167,358,205
Depreciation and amortixakion kil 400,281,915 528,400,077 103,815,560
Impaivment losaes 22 40,077,464 17,959,002 37,851,057‘
Tntcrest income 22 ( 3,394,843 ) ( BA81.577) ( 10,567,092 )
Operating profir hefore wovking capiml changes 2,044,296,334 1,821,766,257 1.571,6:10,539
Increase in bade and other receivaliles { 528,995,729 ) { 5,804.750,049 ) { 720,368,304 )
Decrease (increase) in inventorios 941,703,604 { 123.772.997) { 1,536,137,271)
Decrease fincrease) in land held for sale and land
development costs 17,686,663 ( LHLIISY 50.443:011)
Decrease (increase) in resnicted deposite 28,012,903 { 12,725,617) { 13,637.192)
Incrense in input value-ndded mx { 154,770,691 ) { 53.809.471) { 166,161,100 )
Incrense in prepayments and othet current assets ( 656,719,363 ) { A352,655 ) ( 76,150,578)
Decrease in inarillment connaer reeeivable - - 9.002,788
Inetease (decvcage) in trade and other payables 2,164,142,668 23,332,143 ( 1,536,182,513 )
Cash generated from {used in) opermions 3,8%2,356,389 ¢ 2,361,224,304 ) { 2,548,057,093 )
Cash aid for income faxea { 610,696 ) ( 1,635,260 ) { 56:,033 )
Ner Cash From (Used in) Opereiing Activities 3,851,745,693 { 2362,850,564 ) ( 2,54B,621,126 )
CASI FLOWS FROM INYESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisiions of property and equipment 12 ( 2,473,554,858 3 ( 2,053,908,621 ) { 1,401,021,197 )
Incrense in other non-carrent assets ( 122,883,739) { 149,078,003 ) ( 18-I,693,1()2)
Increass in land held for futuce development { 14,675,215 ) { 8,864,054 ) { 17,096,393 )
Adwances 1o related pacties % ( 10,373,356 ) { 17,362,078 { 9,467,416 }
Interest receival 2,750,007 7,831,603 9,406,410
Collecrions from related partes 11 2,747,994 22 814,08+ 27,479,102
Proceeds tron dispesal of property and equipment 949,543 1,834,386 2,731,613
Net Cashs Used in Investing Activites ( 2,i15,039,234 ) { 2.196,632,686 ) { 1,572,657,953)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIGS
Proceeds from additional intercse-hearing Ioans and borrowings 35,366,969,673 2%.837,935,969 20,255,892,079
Repayments of intcrest-bearing loans and borrowingy ( 35,776,065,093 ) { 26,001,5068,949 ) { 16,217,588,445 )
Inbarest paid ( 798,899,617) GBRB68,143) 545,207,465}
Paymenis of cash dividends a7 ( 184,127,723 ) { 161,105,912) { 166,A87.242)
Inceense (deerense) in ather nan-current liabilities ( 99,338,981 ) 3.951,722 225,101,428
Repayments o celated paciic 2% { 46,956,518 ) { 21,390,502) { 153,064,039
Proceeds Fron wsunnce of shares of stock 27 - 1,509,192,980 -
Proceeds feom bortowings from telated parties - - 177,135,185
3
Net Cash Prom (Used in) linancing Activities (___1,038,118,259 ) 1.478,201,833 3,635,781,501
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 198,288,200 { 81,290,117) ( 485,197,378 )
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 357,220,520 438,510,937 924,008,515
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR P 555,508,720 P 357,% | 138,510,937

Supplemental Inforuation on Non-cash Invesiing and Pinancing Activities:
1} Stock dividends declired and disisibuted by the Group amounted to nil in 2014, 123297 million in 2013 and $244.9 million in 212 fsee Note 27.6)

) OnJaly 6, 2012, the Board of Direorors of the Parent Compiny approved the acquisition of 100% shares of stock of Chelsen Shippimg Coup. (C5C) via
shace-for-share swap. The agreed purchase price amounied to P1,578.0 million payable as 90% issuance of new common shatea of the Parent Company and 10%
eash. Aceordingly, 171.33 millions new common shates wore issued in favor of Udenna Management & Resources Com., 1 related paety under comoman sontral.
The acepisition of CSC is accounted for as business coinbinarion using pooling-o Finterest methed (sce Note L3 and 27.3).

]

Cerwin hauling and heavy cquipment with caceying smount of #19.5 million, P23.7 million and 723.5 million as of December 312, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respretively,
are carried under fivance lenses (see Notes 125, 17.6 and 30.5). :

)

The Group's tinkers were revalued by an independent appraiser in each year from 2009, Revaluation ceserves amounted to PHI7Y million, 286.6 million
and P294.1 million a3 of December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively (see Notes 12.2 and 27.5).

=1

Interest payments nmounting to PT).7 million, P74 nillion and F77.8 million in 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively, were cap
of the cost of property and cquipment {see Notes 123 and 17).

el s part

See Notes to Consolidated Finnncial Statements,

@



P-H-O-E-N-I-X PETROLEUM PHILIPPINES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2014, 2013 AND 2012
(Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

CORPORATE INFORMATION
11 Incorporation and Operations

P-H-O-E-N-I-X Petroleum Phihppmes Inc. (the Parent Company) was incorporated in the
Philippines on May 8, 2002 and is 41% owned by P-H-O-E-N-1-X Petroleum Holdings, Inc.
(PPHLI), a company organized in the Philippines.

The Parent Company’s shares of stock are listed with the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE)
The Parent Company is presently engaged in trading of petroleum products on wholesale and
retail basis and operating of gas stations, oil depots storage facilities and allied services. The
registered office of the Parent Company, which is also its principal place of business, is
located at Stella Hizon Reyes Road, Batrio Pampanga, Davao City. .
PPHI was incorporated in the Philippines on May 31, 2006. PPHI’s primary purpose is to
provide management, investtnent and technical advice for commercial, industrial,
manufacturing and other kinds of enterprises. PPHI’s registered office 1s located at Stella
Hizon Reyes Road, Barrio Pampanga, Davao City.

The ultimate parent is Udcrna Corporation, which is ptimarily organized to purchase,
acquire, take over and manage all or any part of the tights, assets, business and property,
undertake and assume the liabilities of any person, firm, association, partnership, syndicate of
corporation; and to engage in the distribution, selling, importation, installation of pollution
control devices, units and setvices, and all other po]luﬁon control related p1oducts and
emission test servicing. The ultimate parent company’s registered office is located at Bte]la
Hieon Reyes Road, Barrio Pampanga, Davao City.

The Parent Company has a total of 418 operating retail sevvice stations, comprising of 141

service stations in Luzon, 56 in the Visayas and 221 in Mindanao and a total of 61 service
stations under construction as of December 31, 2014

J27
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12 Subsidiaties, Associate and their Opctations

The Parent Company holds ownership interests in the following entities as of December 31
(the Parent Company and the subsidiaries are collectively referred to as “the Group™):

2014 2013

P-F-L Petroleum Management, Inc. (PPMI) 100% 100%
P-H-O-E-N-1-X Global

Mercantile, Inc. (PGMI) 100% 100%
Phoenix Petroterminals & Industrial

Patk Corp. (PPIPC) 100% 100%
Subic Petroleum Trading and Transport

Phils., Inc. (SPTT) 100% 100%
Chelsea Shipping Corp. (C8C) 100% 100%
Bunkers Manila, Inc. (BMI)* 100% 100%
Michael, Inc. (MI)* 100% 100%
PNX — Chelsea Shipping Corp.

(PNX — Chelsea)* 100% 100%
Chelsea Ship Management Marine C
Services Corp. (CSMMSC)* 100% 100%
Fortis Tugs Corp. (FTC)* 100% 100%
Norse/Phil Marine Services Corp. (NPMSCy™* 45% 45%

* Wholly-owned subsidiavier of CSC
%4 ssociate of CSC

All the subsidiaties werc organized and incorporated in the Philippines.

PPMI is primarily engaged in organizing, Managing, administering, running and supervising
the operations and marketing of various kinds of services-oriented companies such as
pettoleum service stations. PPMI was registered with the Securities and Exchange
Comumission (SEC) on January 31, 2007. .

PGMI was registered with the SEC on July 31, 2006 to engage in the manufacture,
production and creation of all kinds of motor, and all other transportation Inbricants, fluids
and additives of all kinds and other petroleum products purposely for motor vehicles and
other transportation. PGMI has temporarily ceased its operation since 2008.

PPIPC is engaged in real estate development. PPIPC was tegistered with the SEC on
March 7, 1996. PPIPC is also tegistered with the Housing and Land Use Regulatory Board
(HLURBY) under Executive Order No. 648 and was granted to sell parcels of land on the
Group’s project, the Phoenix Petroleum Industrial Park (the Park).

SPTT was registered with the SEC on Februaty 20, 2007 and is engaged in buying and |
selling, supply and distribution, importation and exportation, storage and delivery of all
types of petroleum for industrial, marine, aviation and automotive use. It does not carry
any inventory at any given time.

CSC was incorporated in the Philippines on July 17, 2006 and started commercial
opetations on January 1, 2007 and 1s engaged in maritime trade through conveying,
cartying, loading, transporting, discharging and storing of petroleum products, goods and
merchandise of every kind, over waterways in the Philippines. }
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BMI was registered with the SEC on March 7, 2000 to serve the growing demand of marine
fuel (bunker) of foreign vessels calling on the ports of the Philippines. Aside from
international bunkering, BMI also ventures into hauling of marine fuel and petroleum
products fotr major oil companies.

MI, which was registered with the SEC on December 26, 1957 and whose cotpotate life
was approved to be extended for another 50 years by the SEC on May 6, 2008, is engaged
in the business of acquiring and operating floating equipment for charter or hire and for the
conveyance and carriage of goods, wares, and merchandise of every description in the
Philippines coastwise traffic without any fixed schedule. MI is also engaged in the trading
of fuel oil.

PNX — Chelsea was incorporated on February 2, 2011 and is engaged in the ownership and
operation of vessels for domestic trade for the purpose of conveyance or catriage of
petroleum products, goods, wares and merchandise of every kind and description.

CSMMSC was incorporated on March 30, 2012 to carty on the business of ship
management and to act as agent, broker, ship chandler or representative of
foreign/domestic shipping corporations and individuals for the purpose of managing,
operating, supetvising, administering and developing the operation of vessels.

FT'C was incorporated on April 8, 2013 and started commercial operations on
November 8, 2013. It is engaged in the towage and salvage of marine vessels and other
crafts including their cargoes upon seas, lakes, civers, canals, bays, harbours, and other
waterways between the vatious ports of the Philippines, and to acquire by purchase,
charter, lease or modes recognized by law of obtaining title to ot use of such equipment
and properties, teal or personal, which may be necessaty to achieve such purpose.

NPMSC was incorporated on January 30, 2013 to engage in the business of providing
technical ship services and to act as agent, broker, ship handler or representative of
fouejgn/ domestic shipping corporations and individuals for the purpose of operating,
supervising, administering and developing the operation of vessels belonging to or which
are ot may be leased or operated by said shipping corporations and individuals, and to
equip any and all kinds of ships, barges and vessels of every class and description owned by
any shipping cotporation. NPMSC started comimercial opetations on June 10, 2013.

PPMPD’s registered office is located at Penthouse, Valero Tower, 122 Valero Street, Salcedo
Village, Makati City and its principal place of business is located at Stella Hizon Reyes Road,
Batrio Pampanga, Davao City.

The registered office of PGMI, CSC, BMI, MI and PNX — Chelsea, which is also their
principal place of business, is located at Stella Hizon Reyes Road, Barrio Pampanga, Davao
City.

PPIPC’s tegistered office is located at 4™ Floor, Phinma Plaza, 39 Plaza Drive, Rockwell
Center, Makati City and its principal place of business is located at 26" Floor, The Fort
Legend Tower, 3™ Avenue corner 31" Street, The Fort Global City, Taguig City.

The registered office of SPTT, which is also its principal place of business, is located at Unis

113 and 115 Subic International Hotel, Alpha Building, Rizal Highway, Subic Bay Freeport
Zone, Zambales,

29
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The registered address of CSMMSC and I'TC, which is also their principal place of business, is
located at the 26/F, Fort Legend Towers, 3" Ave. corner 31™ St., Bonifacio Global City,

Taguig City.

The registered office of NPMSC, which is also its principal place of business, is located at
2/F Harbor Centre II Bldg., Rzilroad and Delgado Sts., South Harbor, Port Area, Manila.

13 Acquisition of CSC

On September 6, 2012, CSC became a wholly owned subsidiary of the Parent Company *
upon the approval of the Parent Company’s stockholders of the acquisition of the 100% of
CS5C’s outstanding shares from Udenna Management Resources Corp. (UMRC}, a related
party under common ownership (see Note 27.3). The acquisition was initially approved by
the Parent Company’s Board of Directors (BOD} on July 6, 2012 and was subsequently
ratified by the Parent Company’s stockholders on September 6, 2012,

L4 Approval of Consolidated Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements of the Group as of and for the vear ended
December 31, 2014 (including the compatative consolidated financial statements for the years
ended December 31, 2013 and 2012) were authorized for issue by the Parent Company’s
BOD on February 11, 20153,

[}

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accovnting polieies that have been used in the preparation of these
consalidated financial statements are sumimatized below and in the succeeding pages.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

2.1 Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial Stateinentts
(@) Statement of Compliance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards .

The consalidated finaneial statements of the Group have heen prepared in accordance
with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS). PFRS atre adopted by the
Financial Reporting Standards Coumeil (FRSC} from the pronouncements issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board, and approved by the Philippine Board
of Accountancy (BOA)}.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared using the measurement
hases specified by PFRS for each type of assets, labilities, income and expense. The
measurement bases are mote fully described in the accounting policies that follow.

(6} Presentation of Consolidaied Dinancial Statements '

The consolidated financial statements are presented in accordance with Philippine
Accounting Standards (PAS) 1, Presesstation of Financial Siatements. The Group presents
all items of income and expenses in a single consalidated statement of comprehensive
income.
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The Group presents a third consolidated statement of financial position as at the
beginning of the preceding period when it applies an accounting policy retrospectively,
ot makes a retrospective restatement or reclassification of items that has a material
effect on the information in the consolidated statement of financial position at the
beginning of the preceding petiod. The related notes to the third consolidated
statement of financial position ate not required to be disclosed.

(¢} Functional and Presentation Currency

These consolidated financial statements ate presented in Philippine pesos, the Group’s
functional and presentation currency, and all values represent absolute amonnts except
when otherwise indicated.

ltems included in the consolidated financial statements of the Group ate measured
using its functional currency. Functional currency is the cnrrency of the primary
economic environment in which the Group operates.

2.2 Adoption of New and Amended PFRS
(@) Effective in 2014 that are Relevant 1o the Groxp

In 2014, the Group adopted for the first time the following amendments and v
interpretation to PFRS that ate relevant to the Group and effective for the
consolidated financial statements for the annual period beginning on or after
January 1, 2014;

PAS 32 (Amendment) . Financdial Instmments: Presentation —
Offsetting Financial Assets and
Finandal Liahilities
PAS 36 (Amendment) . lmpzisment of Assets — Recoverable
Amount Disclosures for
Non-financial Assets
PAS 39 (Amendment) :  Financial Instrument: Recognition and
Measurement — Nowvation of
Dertvatives and Continuation of
Hedge Accounting
PIRS 10, 12 and PAS 27
(Amendments) . Consclidated Financial Statements,
Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entides, Sepatate Financial
Statements — Exemption from
Consolidation for Investment Entities
Philippine Interpretation
International Financial
Reporting Interpretations .
Committee (IFRIC) 21 . Levies

Discussed in the succeeding pages ate the relevant information about these amended
standards and interpretation.
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PAS 32 (Amendment), Financial Instruments: Presentation — Offetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities. The amendment provides guidance to address
inconsistencies in applying the critetia for offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities. It clarifies that an entity must cuttently have a right of set-
off that 1s not contingent on a future event, and must be lepally enforceable in
the normal coutse of business; in the event of default; and, in the event of
insolvency or bankruptcy of the entity and all of the counterparties, The
amendment also clariftes that gross setfement mechanisms (such as through a
clearing house) with features that both eliminate credit and liquidity risks and
process receivables and payables in a single settlement process, will satisfy the
ctiterion for net settlement. The amendment has been applied retrospectively
in accordance with its transitional provisions. The Group’s existing offsetting
and settlement arrangements for its financial instruments wish its
counterparties are not affected by the amendment; hence, such did not have an
impact on the presentation of financial assets and financial liabilities on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements for any periods presented.

PAS 36 (Amendment), Impatrmsnt of Assets - Recoverable Amount Disclosures for
Non-financial Assets. The amendment clarifies that disclosure of mformation
about the recoverable amount of individual asset (including goodwill) or a
cash-genetating unit is requited only when an impairment loss has been
recognized or reversed during the reporting period. If the recoverable amount
is determined based on the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s fair value less cost
of disposal, additional disclosures on fait value measurement required under
PERS 13, Fair VValue Measuresseni, such as but not limited to the fair value
hierarchy, valuation technique used and key assumnptions applied should be
provided in the consolidated financial statements. This amendment did not
result in additional disclosures in the consolidated financial statements since
the Group did not recognize or reverse impairment losses on its non-financial
assets during the year. ‘

PAS 39 (Amendment), Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurenent —
Novation of Desivatives and Continsation of Hedge Avcoumting. The atnendment
provides some relief from the requirements on hedge accounting by allowing:
entities to continue the use of hedge accounting when a dertvative is novated
to a clearing counterparty resulting in termination or expiration of the original
hedging instrument as a consequence of laws and regulations, or the
inttoduction thereof. As the Group neither enters into transactions involving
derivative instmiments nor does it applies hedge accounting, the amendment
did not have any impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

172
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]

(zv) PFRS 10, PFRS 12 and PAS 27 (Amendments), Consolidated Financial Statiments,

)

Disclosurer of Interests in Otber Entities, Separate Financial Statements — Excemption from
Comsolidation for Investment Entities. 'The amendments define the term
“investment entity” and provide o such an investment entity an exernption
from the consolidation of particular subsidiaries and instead requite to measute
investment in each eligible subsidiary at fair value through profit or loss in
accordance with PAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recoenition and Measnrement, or
PTRS 9, Financial Instriments, both i its consolidated or sepai'ate financial
statements, as the case maybe. The amendments also require additional
disclosures about the details of the entity’s unconsolidated subsidiaries and the
nature of its relationship and certain transactions with those subsidiaties. This
amendment had no significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial )
statements as the Group does not have investment entities.

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 21, Lewies. This interpretation clarifies that the
obligating event as one of the criteria under PAS 37, Provisions, Contingent
Ligbifitier and Contingent Assets, for the recognition of a liability for levy imposed
by a government is the activity described in the relevant legislation that triggers
the payment of the levy. Accordingly, the liability is recognized in the
consolidated financial statements progressively if the obligating event occurs
over a period of time and if an obligation is triggered on reaching a minimum
threshold, the liability is recognized when that minimum threshold is reached.
This amendment had no significant impact on the Group’s consolidated .
financial statements.

Effestive Subsequent to 2014 but not Adopted Barly

There are new PFRS, amendments and annual improvements to existing standards

.effective for annual petiods subsequent to 2014 which are adopted by the FRSC,

subject to the apptoval of the BOA. Management will adopt the following relevant
pronouncements in accordance with their transitional provisions, and, unless
otherwise stated, none of these are expected to have significant impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements:

@

PAS 19 (Amendment), Enployee Benefits — Defined Benefit Plans — Epployee
Conaributions (effective from July 1, 20143, The amendment clarifies that if the
amousnt of the conttibutions from employees or third parties is dependent on the
number of yeats of setvice, an entity shall artribure the contributions to petiods
of setvice using the same attribution method (Le., either using the plan’s
contribution formula or on a straight-line basis) for the gross benefit.

\p/
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PAS 1 (Amendment), Presentation of Financial Statesments — Disclosurs Initiative
(effective from January 1, 2016). The amendment encourages entities to apply
professional judgment in presenting and disclosing information in the
consolidated financial statements. Accordingly, it clarifies that materiality
applies to the whole consolidated financial statements and an entity shall not
reduce the undesstandability of the consolidated financial statements by
obscuring material information with immaterial information or by aggregating
material items that have different natures or functions. Moreover, the
amendment clarifies that an entity’s share of other comprehensive income of
associates and joint ventures accounted for using equity method should be
presented based on whether or not such other comprehensive income itern will
subsequently be reclassified to profit or loss. Tt further clarifies that in
determining the order of presenting the notes and disclosures, an entity shall”
consider the understandability and comparability of the consolidated financial
statements.

PAS 16 (Amendment), Property, Plant and Egsipment — Clarification of Acceptabie
Methods of Depreciation and Amortization (effective from January 1, 2016). The
amendment in PAS 16 clarifies that a depreciation method that is based on
revenue that is generated by an activity that includes the use of an assetis not
appropriate for property, plant and equipment. The amendment also provides
guidance that the expected future reductions in the selling price of an item that
was produced using the asset could indicate an expectation of technological or
commercial obsolescence of an asset, which may reflect 2 reduction of the fufure
economic benefits embodied in the asset.

PAS 28 (Amendment), Investamenty in Associgios and Joint Venturer — Inveriment

. Elntities — Applying the Consolidation Fixceeption (effective from January 1, 2016). 'This

amendment addresses the concerns that have arisen in the context of applying
the consolidation exception for investment entities. This amendment permits a
non-investment entity investor, when applying the equity method of accounting
for an associate or joint venture that is an investiment eatity, to vetain the fair
value measurement applied by that investment entity associate o1 joiat venture o
its interests in subsidiaties.

PFRS 10 (Amendment), Consolidated Finanvial Statements and PAS 28 '
(Amendment}, Tnvgsiments in Associates and Joint Ventures — Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an Investor and ity Associates or Jomnt Veniurs (effective from
January 1, 2016). The amendment to PFRS 10 rcquires full recognition in the
investor’s financial statements of gains or losses arising on the sale or
contribution of assets that constitute a business as defined in PERS 3, Busiresr
Cormbinations, between an investor and its associzte or joint venture. Accordingly,
the partial recogaition of gains or losses (Le., to the extent of the unrelated
investor’s interests in an associate ox joint ventute) only applies to those sale of
contribution of assets that do not constitute a business. Cormesponding
amendment has been made to PAS 28 to reflect these changes. Tn addition,
PAS 28 has been amended to darify that when determining whether assets that
ate sold or contributed constitute a business, an entity shall consider whether the
sale or contrbution of those assets 1s part of multiple arrangements that should
be accounted for as 2 single transaction.
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(v PERS 9 (2014), Financial Instruments (effective from January 1, 2018). This new
standard on financial instruments will eventually replace PAS 39 and PFRS 9.
(2009, 2010 and 2013 versions). This standard contains, among others, the
following:

* thrce principal classification categories for financial assets based on the
business model on how an entity is managing its financial insttuiments;

* an expected loss model in determining impairment of all financial assets
that are not measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), which
generally depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit
sk since initial recognition of a financial asset; and,

* 2 new model on hedge accounting that provides significant improveiments
principally by aligning hedge accounting more closely with the risk
management activities undertaken hy entities when hedging their financial
and non-financial risk exposures.

In accordance with the financial asset classification principle of PERS 9 {2014),
a financial asset is classified and measured at amortized cost if the asset is held
within 2 business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to
collect the contractual cash flows that represent solely payments of principal
and interest (SPPT) on the principal outstanding. Moreover, a financial asset is
classified and suhsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income if it meets the SPPI criterion and is held in a business,
model whose ohjective is achieved hy hoth collecting contractual cash flows

and selling the financial assets. All other financial assets are measured at
FVTIPL.

In addition, PFRS 9 (2014) allows entities to make an irtevocable election to
present subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity instrument. that is not
held for trading in other comprehensive income.

The accounting for embedded derivatives in host contracts that are financial
assets is simplified by removing the requirement to consider whether or not
they ate closely related, and, in most arrangements, does not requite separation
from the host contract. )

For lisbilities, the standard retains most of the PAS 39 requirements which
include amortized cost accounting for most financial liabilities, with bifurcation
of embedded derivatives. The amendment also requires changes in the fair
value of an entity’s own debt instruments caused by changes in its own credit
quality to be recognized in other comprehensive income rather than in profit
or loss.

The Group does not expect to implement and adopt any version of PFRS 9 until
its effective date. In addition, management is currently assessing the impact of
PERS 9 on the consolidated financial statements of the Group and it will
conduct a comprehensive study of the potential impact of this standard prior to
its mandatory adoption date to assess the impact of all changes.
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FFRS 12 (Amendment), Disclosures of Interests in Other Entitior — Investment Fintities:
Appying the Consolidation Excepiion (effective from Januaty 1, 2016). The
amendment clarifies that an investment entity that measures all its subsidiaries at
fair value should provide the disclosures required by PFRS 12. ’

Annual Improvements to PFRS. Annual improvements to PFRS

(2010-2012 Cycle) and PIRS (2011-2013 Cycle) effective for annual periods
beginning on or after July 1, 2014, and to PFRS (2012-2014 Cycle) effective for
annual periods beginning on or aftet January 1, 2016, made minor amendments
to a numbet of PFRS. Among those improvements, the following amendments
ate relevant to the Group but management does not expect those to have a
material impact on the Gtoup’s consolidated financial statements:

Arnsal Improverents to PERS (2070-2012 Cyele}

(a) PAS 16 (Amendment), Property, Plant and Equipmeni. The amendment
clatifies that when an item of property, plant and equipment is revalned, the
gross carrying amount is adjusted in 2 manner that is consistent with a
tevaluation of the catrying amount of the asset.

() PAS 24 (Amendment), Related Party Disclosures. 'The amendment clarifies
that an entity providing key management services to a reporting entify is
deemed to be a related patty of the latter. It also requires and clarifies that
the information required to be disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements are the amounts incurred by the reporting entity for key
management personnel services that ate provided by a separate management
entity and not the amounts of compensation paid or payable by the '
managetnent entity to its employees or direetors.

(c) PERS 3 (Amendment), Business Combinations. The amendment clatifies that
an obligation to pay contingent consideration which meets the definition of
a financial instrument is elassified as a financial liability or as equity in
accordance with PAS 32. Tt also clarifies that all non-equity contingent
consideration should be measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period, with changes in fair value recognized in profit or loss.

(4} PFRS 8 (Amendment), Operaiing Segmenits, The amendment requires
disclosure of the judgments made by management in applying the
aggregation ctitetia to operating segments. This ineludes a deseription of
the segments which have been aggregated and the economie indicatots
which have been assessed in determining that the aggregated segments sharc
similar economie characteristics. It further clarfies the requitement to
disclose for the teconciliations of segment assets to the entity’s assets if that
amount is regulatly provided to the chief operating decision tmalker.
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PFERS 13 (Amendment), Fair VVake Meassrement. The amendment, through a
revision only in the basis of conclusion of PFRS 13, clarifies that issuing
PFRS 13 and amending certain provisions of PFRS 9 and PAS 39 related to
discounting of financial instruments, did not remove the ability to measure
short-term receivables and payables with no stated intetest rate on an
undiscounted basis, when the effect of not discounting is imonaterial.

Annual Improvements o PERS (2017-2073 Cyelp)

(@)

®)

¢

PERS 3 (Amendment), Business Combinations. The amendment clarifies that
PFRS 3 does not apply to the accounting for the formation of any joint
arrangement under PERS 11, Joint_Arrangement, in the financial statements
of the joint arrangement itself.

PFRS 13 {Amendment), Fasr Value Measuresment. The amendment clatifies
that the scope of the exception for measuring the fair value of a group of
financial assets and financial liabilities on a net basis (the portfolio .
exception) applies to all contracts within the scope of and accounted for
in accordance with PAS 39 or PFRS 9, regatdless of whether they meet
the definition of financial assets or financial liabilities as defined in

PAS 32,

PAS 40 (Amendment), Investment Property. 'The amendment clarifies the
interrelationship of PFRS 3 and PAS 40 in determining the classification
of property as an investment property or owner-occupied property, and
explicitly requires an entity to use judgment in determining whether the
acquisition of an investment property is an acquisition of an asset or a
group of asset in accordance with PAS 40, or a business combination in
accordance with PFRS 3. :

Asnszal nprovements to PERS (2012-2074 Cycle)

()

)

PFRS 7 (Amendment), Financial Instraments — Disclossres. 'The amendment
provides additional guidance to help entities identify the circumstances
under which a contract to “service” financial assets is considered to be a
continuing involvement in those assets for the purposes of applying the
disclosure requirements of PFRS 7. Such circumstances commonly atise
when, for example, the servicing is dependent on the amount or timing of
cash flows collected from the transfetred asset or when a fixed fee is not
paid in full due to non-performance of that asset. .
PAS 19 (Amendment), Emplyee Benefits. 'The amendment clarifies that the
currency and term of the high quality corporate bonds which were used to
determine the discount rate for post-employment benefit abligations shall
be made consistent with the currency and estimated term of the
post-employment benefit obligations.

\Ys8
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2.3 Basis of Consolidation

The Group’s consolidated financial statements comprise the accounts of the Parent
Company and its subsidiaries (see Note 1) after the elimination of intercompany
transactions. All intercompany assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
Hows relating to transactions between entities undet the Group, are eliminated in full on
consolidation. Unrealized profits and losses from intercompany transactions that are
tecognized in assets are also eliminated in full. Intercompany losses that indicate
impaitment ate recognized in the consolidated financial statements.

The financial statements of subsidiaties are prepared for the same reporting pertod as the
Parent Company, using consistent accounting principles.

The Parent Company accounts for its investments in subsidiaries and an associate as
follows:

(@) Investments in Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are entities (including structured entities) over which the Parent '
Company has control. The Parent Company controls an entity when it is exposed, or
has rights to, variable retumns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date the Parent Company obtains control

The Parent Company reassesses whether or not it controls an entity if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control indicated above. Accordingly, entities are deconsolidated from the date that
control ceases.

‘The acquisition method is applied to account for acquired subsidiaries. This requires
recognizing and measuring the identifiable assets acquired, the liabilities assumed and
any non-controlling interest in the acquiree. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities
incurred and the equity interests issued by the Patent Company, if any. The
considetation transferred also includes the fair value of any asset or liability resuiting
from 2 contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition-related costs are expensed
as incurred and subsequent change in the fair value of contingent consideration is
recognized directly in profit or loss.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in 2
business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.
On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group recognizes any non-controlling’
interest in the acquitee, either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
propottionate share of the recognized amounts of acquiree’s idcatifiable net assets.
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The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any existing equity
interest in the acquiree over the acquisition-date fair value of the Group’s sbare of the
identifiable net assets acquired is recognized as goodwill (see Note 16). If the
consideration received is less than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is recognized directly as gain
in profit or loss {see Note 2.13).

On the other hand, business combinations arising from transfers or acquisition of
Interests in entities that are under the common control of the sharebolder that
controls the Group are normally accounted for under the pooling-of-interests method
and reflected in the consolidated financial statements as if the business combination
had occutred at the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented, or if later,
at tbe date that common control was establisbed; for this purpose, comparatives are
restated. The assets and liabilities acquired are recognized in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements at the carrying amounts previously recognized. The
difference between the consideration transferred and the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired is recognized as Other Reserves as part of the equity (see Notes 2.13 and
2.24).

Tnvestement in an Ascociate

Associates are those entities over which tbe Parent Company is able to exert
significant influence but which are neitber subsidiaties not intetests in a joint ventute.
Investments in associates are initially recognized at cost and subsequently accounted
for using tbe equity method. '

Acquited investment in associate 1s subject to the purchase metbod. Tbe purchase
method involves the recognition of the acquiree's identifiable assets and liabilities,
including contingent liabilities, regardless of whether they wete recorded in the
financial statements prios to acquisition. (Goodwill represents the excess of
acquisition cost over the fair value of the Parent Company's sbate of the identifiallle
net assets of the acquirce at the date of acquisition. Any goodwill ot fair value
adjustment attributable to the Patent Company's sbate in the associate is included in
the amount recognized as investment in an associate.

Impaitrment loss is provided when there is objective evidence that tbe investment in
an assoclate will not be recovered (see Note 2.17).

Changes resulting from other comprehensive income of the associate or items
recognized ditectly in the associate’s equity are recognized in other comprehensive
income or equity of the Group, as applicable. However, wben tbe Parent Company’s
shate of losses in an associate equals ot exceeds its interest in the associate, includjng
any other unsecured receivables, the Parent Company does not recognize further
losses, unless it bas incutred obligations ot made payments on behalf of the associate.
If the associate subsequently repotts profits, tbe investor resumes recognizing its
share of those profits only after its sbave of the profits exceeds the accumulated share
of losses that has previously not been recognized,

17
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Distributions received from the associates are accounted for as a reduction of the
cartying value of the investment.

The Parent Company holds interests in various subsidiaries and in an associate as presented
in Notes 1 and 13.

2.4 Financral Assets

Financial assets are recognized when the Group becomes a patty to the conttactual terms of
the financial instrument. Financial assets are classified into the following categories:
financial assets at FVTPL, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments and
available-for-sale financial assets. Finaneial assets are assigned to the different categories by
management on initial recognition, depending on the purpose for which the mvestments
were acquired.

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on their trade date. All
financial assets that are not classified as at FV'IPL are initially recognized at fair value plus
any directly attributable transaction costs. Financial assets carried at FVTPL are initially
recorded at fair value and the related transaction costs are recognized in profit ot loss.

Currendy, the financial assets category relevant to the Group is loans and receivables.

Loans and receivables ate non-desivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are nat quoted in an active market. They arise when the Group provides
money, goods ot setvices ditectly to a debtor with no intention of trading the receivables.
They are included in current assets, except for those with maturities greater than 12 months
after the end of each reporting period which are classified as non-current assets.

The Group’s financial assets categotized as loans and receivables ate presented as Cash and
Cash Fquivalents, Trade and Other Receivables, Due from Related Parties, Restricted
Deposits, and Refundable Rental Deposits (presented as part of Other Non-Current Assets
in the consolidated statement of financial position). Cash and cash equivalents include cash
on hand, savings and demand deposits and short-term, highly liquid investments with X
otiginal maturities of three months or less, readily convertible to known amounts of cash
and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Refundable rental deposits are initially recognized at fair value. Interest on the rental
deposits arising from subsequent amortization is accounted for using the effective interest
method and is presented as part of Finance Income under Other Chatges (Income) in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The excess of the principal amount of the
deposit over its present value is immediately recognized as deferred minimuin lease -
payments (presented as part of Other Non-Current Assets in the consolidated statement of
financial position). Meanwhile, rent expense atising from subsequent amortization of
deferred minimum lease payments is accounted for using the straight-line method over the
lease term and is presented as part of Rent under Selling and Administrative Expenses in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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Loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method, less impairment loss, if any. Impaitment loss is ptovided when there is
objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due to itin  +
accordance with the original terms of the receivabies. The amount of the impairment loss is
determined as the difference between the assets’ carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows {excluding future credit losses that have not becn incurred),
discounted at the financial asset’s original effcctive intercst rate or current effective intercst
rate determined under the contract if the loan has a variable interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset shall be reduced either directly or through the use of an
allowance account. The amount of the loss shall be recognized in profit or loss.

If in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrcase
can be related ob}ectlvely to an cvent occutring after the impairment was tecognized (such
as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the previously recognized impairment loss
is reversed by adjusting the allowance account The amount of the reversal is recognized in
profit or loss.

Non-compounding interest and other cash flows resulting from holding financial assets are
recognized in profit or loss when earned, regatdless of how the related cartying amount of
financial assets is measured.

The financial assets are derecognized when the contractual rights to receive cash fows from
the financial instruments expire, ot when the finandial assets and all substantial risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to another party. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Group recognizes its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to
recognize the financial asset and also recognizes a collateralized borrowing for the proceeds
received,

2.5 Inventories

Tnventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost 1s determined
using the moving average method. The cost of inventories include all costs directly
attributable to acquisitions, such as the purchase price, import duties and other taxes that
are not subsequently recoverable from taxing authotities. ’

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinaty course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs neeessary to make the sale.

2.6 Land Held for Sale and Land Development Costs

Land held for sale and land development costs are valued at the lower of cost and net
realizable value. Tand held for sale and Jand development costs includes the cost of land
and actual development costs incutred as at the end of reporting period. Interest incurred
during the development of the project is capitalized (see Note 2.19).
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Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of developing and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

2.7 Prepayments and Other Current Assets .
Prepayments and other current assets pertain to other resources controlled by the Group as
a result of past events. They ate recognized in the consolidated financizl statements when it
is probable that the future economic benefits will flow to the entity and the asset has a cost
or value that can be measured reliably.

Other recognized assets of similar nature, where future economic benefits are expected to
flow to the Group beyond one year after the end of the reporting petiod or in the normal
operating cycle of the business, if longer, are classified as non-current assefs.

2.8 Land Held For Future Development

Laod held for future development is valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value.
Cost of land held for future development includes purchase price and other costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of land.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of developing and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

2.9 Property and Equipment

Land 1s stated at cost less any impairment in value. Tankers ate measured at revalued
amount less accumnulated depreciation. Al other property and equipment are carried at
acquisition cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization and any impairment in
value,

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to working condition for its intended use. Expenditures for additions, major
itnprovements and renewals ate capitalized while expenditures for repairs and maintenance
are charged to expense as incurred, except for periodic drydocking costs performed at least
every two years on the vessel, which are capitalized (see Note 2.10).

Following initial recognition, tankers are carried at revalzed amounts which ate the fair
values at the date of revaluation, as determined by independent appraisers, less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated inpairment losses. .

Revalued amounts represent fair values determined based on appraisals by external
professional valuer once every two years unless more frequently if market factors indicate a
material change in fair value (see Note 5.4).

XYL
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Any revaluation surplus is recognized in other comprehensive income and credited to the
Revaluation Reserves account in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Any
tevaluation deficit directly offsetting a previous suplus in the same asset is charged to other
comprehensive income to the extent of any revaluation surplus in equity relating to this
asset and the remaining deficit, if any, is recogaized in profit or loss. Annually, 2n amount
from the Revaluation Reserves is transfetred to Retained Eatnings for the depreciation
relating to the revatuation surplus. Upon disposal of the revalued assets, amounts included
in Revaluation Reserves is transferred to Retained Farnings.

Depreciation is computed on the straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the
assets as follows:

Marine Tankers 30 years
Buildings, depot and pier facilities 5-25 years
Transportation and other equipment 1-10 years
Vessel equipment 5 years
Hanling and heavy equipment 1-5 years
Gasoline station equipment 1-5 years .
Office furniture and equipment 1-3 yeats

Leasehold and land improvements are amortized over the terms of the related leases of the
useful lives of the improvements, whichever is shorter.

Hauling and heavy equipment held undet finance lease agreements (see Note 2.15) are
depreciated over their expected useful lives (determined by reference to comparable owned
assets} or over the term of the lease, if shorter.

Construction in progress represents properties under construction and on-going major
repair wotks and is stated at cost. This includes cost of construction, applicable borrowing
costs (see Note 2.19) and other direct costs. The account is not depreciated until such time
that the assets ate completed and available for use.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverahle amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (see Note 2.17).

The restdual vatues, estimated useful lives and method of depreciation of property and
equipment are teviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting petiod.

An item of property and equiptment, including the related accumulated depteciation,
amortization and impairment losses, if any, is derecognized upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected to atise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the itetn) is included in profit or loss in
the year the itern is derecognized.
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2.10 Deydocking Costs

Drydocking costs ate consideted major repairs that preserve the life of the vessel. As an
industry practice, costs associated with drydocking are amortized over two years or until the
next drydocking occurs, whichever comes carlier. When significant drydocking
expenditures occur prior to theit expiry, any remaining unamortized balance of the
preceding drydocking costs is expensed in the month of the subsequent drydocking.

Amortization of drydocking costs starts only when the process has been completed and the
related vessel is ready for use.

'The carrying amount of drydacking costs, presented as part of the Other Non-current Assct
account in the consolidated statement of financial position, is written down immediately to
its recoverahle amount if the cartying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable
amount (see Note 2.17).

The carrying amount of drydocking costs is derecognized upon detecognition of the related
tanker. The computed gain or loss atising on the derecognition of the tanker takes into
consideration the carrying amount of drydocking costs and is inclided in profit or loss in
the year the related tanker is derecognized (see Note 2.9).

2.11 Financial Liabilities .
Financal labilities, which include iaterest-hearing loans and horrowings, trade and other
payahles (excluding tax-related payahles), due to rclated parties and security deposits
(presented under Other Non-Current Liahilities in the consolidated statement of financial
position), are recognized when the Group hecomes a party to the contractual terms of the
instrument. All interest-related charges incurred on financial liability are recognized as an
expense in profit or loss under the caption Finance Costs in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Interest charges that are attrihutable to the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset (.e., an asset that takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its
totended use or sale) are capitalized as part of the cost of such asset (see Note 2.19). Alt
other interest related charges are recognized as an expense in the consohdated statement of
comprehensive Income under the caption Finance Costs.

Interest-heating loans and borrowings ate raised for support of long-term funding of
operations. Finance charges, including premiums payahle on settlement or redemption and
direct issue costs, are charged to profit or loss on an accrual basis using the effective interest
method and are added to the cawying amount of the instrument to the extent that these are
not settled in the period in which they arise.

Obligations under finance lease (included as part of Interest-hearing Loans and
Borrowings) are recognized at amounts equal to the fait value of the leased property

or, if lower, at the present value of minimurm lease payments, at the inception of the lease
(see Notes 2.15 and 30.5),

&Y
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Trade and other payables (excluding tax-related payables), due to related parties and security
deposits are recognized initially at their fair values and subsequently measured at amortized
cost, using effective interest method for maturities beyond one year, less settlement
Payments.

Secutity deposits are initially recognized at fair value. Interest on the security deposits
atising from subsequent amortization is accounted for using the effective interest method
and is presented as part of Finance Costs. The excess of the principal amount of the
deposit over its present value is immediately recognized as unearned tent (presented as part
of Other Non-Current Liabilitics in the consolidated statement of financial position}.
Meanwhile, the rent income arising from subsequent amortization of unearned rent is
accounted for using the straight-line method over the lease term and is presented as patt of
Rent and Storage Income in the consolidated statement of comprehensive incormne.
Dividend distributions to shareholders are recognized as financial liabilities upon
declaration by the Parent Company.

Financial liabilities are classified as cutrent liabilities if payment is due to be settled within
one year or less after the end of the reporting period (or in the normal aperating cycle of
the business, if longer}, or the Group does not have an unconditional nght to defer
settlement of the liability for at least twelve months aftet the end of the reporting petiod.
Otherwise, these are presented as non-current liabiities.

Financial liabilities are derecognized from the consolidated statement of financial position
only when the obligations are extinguished either through discharge, cancellation or
expiration. The difference betwecn the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognized and the consideration paic! or payable is recognized in profit or loss.

2.12 Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions are recognized when present obligations will prohably lead to an outflow of
economic resources and they can be estimated reliably even if the timing or amount of the
outflow inay still be uncertain. A present obligation arises from the presence of a legal or
constructive obligation that has resulted from past events.

Prowisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present
obligation, based on the most reliable evidence available at the end of the reporting period,
including the risks and uncertainties associated with the present obligation. Where there ate
a nuinber of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
15 determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. When time value of
money is material, long-term provisions ate discounted to their present walues using a
pretax rate that reflects market assessments and the risks specific to the obligation. The
increase in provision due to passage of time is recognized as interest expense. Provisions
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate.
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In those cases where the possible outflow of economic resource as a result of present
obligations is considered improbable or remote, or the amount to be provided for cannot
be measured reliably, no Hability is recognized in the consolidated financial statements.
Similatly, possible inflows of economic benefits to the Group that do not yet meet the
tecognition criteria of an asset are considered contingent assets, hence, are not recognized
in the consolidated financial statements. On the other hand, any reimhursement that the
Group can be vistually certain to collect from a third party with respect to the obligation is
tecognized as a separate asset not exceeding the amount of the related provisiomn.

2.13 Business Combinations

Business acquisitions are accounted for. using the acquisition method of accounting and
pooling-of-intetest method.

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the
Group’s share of the net identifiable assets of the acquired subsidiary at the date of
acquisition. Subsequent to initial tecognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested annually for impaitment and carried at

cost less accumulated itnpairment losses. Impairment losses on goodwill are not reversed
(see Note 2.17).

Negattve goodwill which is the excess of the Group’s interest in the fair value of net
identifiable assets acquired over acquisition cost is charged directly to income.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to cash-generating uuits or
groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the business combination
in which the goodwill arose. The cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating units
are identified according to operating segment,

Gains and losses on the disposal of an interest in a subsidiary include the catrying amount
of goodwill relating to it.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquirer is required to reimeasure its
previously held equity interest in the acquitee at its acquisition-date fair value and recognize
the resulting gain or loss, if any, in the profit ot loss or other comprehensive income, as
appropriate.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group is recognized at fair value at
the acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration
that is deemed to be an asset or liability is recognized in accordance with PAS 37, either in
profit or loss or as a change to othet comprehensive income. Contingent consideration
that is classified as equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent settlerneut is accounted for
within equity.

Under the pooling-of-interest method, similar accounts of the entities are combined on a
line-by-line basis except for the equity accounts which were offset with the new shares
issued by the new entity in which the difference between the net assets received and the
amouat of the consideration (shares issued and cash) is accounted for as Other Reserves.

Y6
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2.14 Revenue and Expense Recognition

Revenue comprises revenue from the sale of goods and rendering of services measured by
reference to the fair value of consideration received or receivable by the Group for goods
sold and services rendered, excluding value-added tax (VAT), rebates and trade discounts.

Revenue is recognized to the extent that the revenue can be reliably measured; it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group; and the costs incurted ot to be incurred
can be measured reliably. In addition, the following specific recognition ctiteria must also
be met before revenue is recognized:

(a) Sale of goods — Revenue is recognized when the risks and rewards of ownership of the '
goods have passed to the buyer, i.e. generally when the customer has acknowledged
delivery of goods or when the customer has taken undisputed delivery of goods.

(k) Cbarter feer — Revenue, which consists mainly of charter income atising from the charter
hire of tankers, is recognized based on the type of charter arrangement entered nto,
either under a time charter (TC), a continuing voyage charter (CVC), or a barehoat
agreement (BB) [see Note 3.1/d)]. Under a TC and BB, revenue is trecognized based on
the terms of the contract, with the distinction thatin a BB, no administration or technical
maintenance is Included as part of the agreement. Under a CVC, revenue is recognized
upon completion of the voyage; however, appropriate accral of revenue is made at the
end of the reporting period.

(¢} Tuel service and otber revenues, port revensier and siorage income — Revenue is tecognized when the
performance of contractually agreed tasks has been substantially tendeted. This account
includes franchise income, which has minimal amount. In addition, this includes revenue
adsing from port and catgo handling services.

Rent incorre — Revenue 1s recognized on 2 straight-line basis over the lease term
gl 2
{(see Note 2.15).

(¢) Inieresi incorse - Revenue is recognized as the interest accrues taking into account the
effective yield on the asset.

Cost and expenses are recognized in the profit or loss upon utilization of goods or services
ot at the date they are incurred. All finance costs are reported in profit or loss on 2n accrual
basis, except capitalized borrowing costs which are included as patt of the cost of the
related qualifying asset (see Note 2.19).

The cost of real estate sold, if any, before the completion of the development is determined
based on the actual costs incurred to date which indude the cost of land plus estimated
costs to complete the project development. The estimated expenditures for the
development of sold real estate, as determined by project engineers, are charged to Cost of
Sales and Services account in the consclidated statement of comprehensive income with a
corresponding credit to accrued expenses presented under the Trade and Other Payables
account in the consolidated statement of financial position. Effects of any revisions in the
total project cost estitnates are recognized in the year in which the changes become known.
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2.15 Leases .
The Group accounts for its leases as follows:
(@} Group as Lassee

Leases which transfer to the Group substantially all risks and benefits incidental to

ownership of the leased item are classified as finance leases and are recognized as assets
and liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position at amounts equal to the
fair value of the leased property at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present

value of minimum lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned between the
finance costs and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

Finance costs are recognized in profit or loss. Capitalized leased assets ate depreciated

over the shotter of the estimated useful life of the asset or the lease term.

" Finance lease obligations, net of finanee charges, are included in Interest-bearing Loans

and Bosrowings account in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Leases which do not transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and benefits of

ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments (net
of any incentive received from the lessor) are recognized as expense in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Associated costs, such as repairs and maintenance and insurance, are expensed as
incurred,

(6) Group as Lessor

Leases wherein the Group substantially transfers to the lessee all risks and bencfits
incidental to ownership of the leased item ase classified as finance leases and are
presented as receivable at an amount equal to the Group’s net investment in the lease.

Finance income is recognized based on the pattern reflecting a constant periodic rate of

retuin on the Group’s net investment outstanding in respect of the finance lease.

Leases which do not transfer to the lessee substantially all the risks and bepefits of *
ownership of the asset atc classified as operating leases. Lease income from operating
leases is recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group determines whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease based on the
substance of the atrangement. It makes an assessment of whether the fulfilment of the
arrangement is dependeat on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement
conveys a right to use the asset.

Ty
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2.16 Forecign Currency Transactions and Translations

The accounting records of the Group ate tnaintained in Philippine pesos. Foreign currency
transactions during the year ate translated into the fuactional cutrency at exchange rates
which approximate those prevailing on transaction dates. .

Foreign currency gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in profit ot loss.

2.17 Impaitment of Non-financial Assets

The Group’s property and equipment, investment in an associate, drydocking costs
(presented as part of Other Non-current Assets in the consolidated staternent of financial
position), goodwill and other non-financial assets are subject to impairment testing.
Individual assets or cash-generating units are tested fot impaitment whenevet eveuts ot
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable, exeept
for goodwill that is tested for impairment at least annually.

For purposes of assessing impaignent, assets ate grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash flows {cash-generating units). As a result, some assets
are tested individually for impairment and some are tested at cash-generating unit level,
Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating units that are
expected to benefit from the business combination in which the goodwill arose. The
cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating units are identified according to
operating segment.

Impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss for the amount by which the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amounts which is the higher of its
fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. In determining value in use, management
estitnates the expected future cash flows from each cash-generating unit and determines the
suitable intetest rate in ordet to calculate the present value of those cash flows. The data
used for impairment testing procedures ate directly linked to the Group’s latest approved
budget, adjusted as necessary to exclude the effects of asset enhancements. Discount
factors are detesmined individually for each cash-generating unit and reflect management’s
assessment of respective risk profiles, such as market and asset-specific risk factors.

Except for goodwill, all assets are subsequently reassessed for indications that an
impairment loss previously recognized tnay no longer exist. An impairment loss, except
impairment loss on goodwill (see Note 2.13), is reversed if the asset’s or cash generating
unit’s rtecoverable amount exceeds its catrying amount.
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2.18 Employee Benefits

The Group provides post-employment benefits to employees thtough 2 defined benefit
plan and a defined contribution plan, and other employee benefits which are recognized as
follows:

(a) Postemployment Defined Benefit Plan

A defined benefit plan is a 'post—employment plan that defines an amount of
post-employment benefit that an employee will receive on retirement, usually dependent
on one or motre factors such as age, years of service and salary. The legal obligation for
any benefits from this kind of post-employment plan remains with the Group, even if
plan assets, if any, for funding the defined benefit plan have been acquired. Plan assets, if
any, may include assets specifically designated to a fong-term benefit fand, as well as
qualifying insurance policies. The Group’s post-employment benefit pension plan covers
all regular full-time employees. The pension plan is tax-qualified, noneontributory and
administered by a trustee.

The liability recognized in the consolidated statement of financial positton for a defined
benefit plan is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the ~
reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is
calculated annually by independent acmaries using the projected unit credit method.
The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the
estimated future cash outflows using a discount rate derived from the interest rates of 2
zero coupon government bond as published by Philippine Dealing and Exchange
Corporation, that are denominated in the cuttency in which the benefits will be paid
and that have terms to matutity approximating to the terms of the related post-
employment hability.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses atising from experience
adjustments and changes in acmarial assumptions and the return on plan assets .
(excluding amount included in net interest) are reflected immediately in the
consolidated statement of financial position with a charge or credit recognized in other
comprehensive income in the period in which they arise. Net interest is calculated by
applying the discount rate at the beginning of the period, taking account of any changes
in the net defined benefit liability or asset during the period as a result of contributions
and benefit payments. Net interest is teported as patt of Finance Costs or Finance
Income account in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Past service costs are recognized immediately in profit or loss in the period of a plan
amendment.
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() Post-empioyment Defined Contribution Plays
A defined contrihution plan is a post-employment plan under which the Group pays
fixed contrihutions into an independent entity. The Group has no legal or constructive
ohligations to pay furthet contrihutions after payment of the fixed contrihution. The
contrihutions recognized in respect of defined contribution plans ate expensed as they
fall due. Liabilities and assets may he recognized if underpayment ot prepayment has
occurred and are included in current liahilities or cutrent assets as they ate normally of a
short-term nature.

(¢) Termination Benefits

Termination henefits are payahle when employment is terminated hy the Group hefore
the normal retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundaney in
exchange for these henefits. The Group recognizes termination henefits at the eatlier
of when it can no longer withdraw the offer of such benefits and when it recognizes
costs for a restructuring that is within the scope of PAS 37 and involves the payment of
termination benefits. In the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy,
the termination henefits are measured hased on the numher of employees expected to
accept the offet. Benefirs falling due more than 12 months after the reporting period
ate discounted to their present value,

(3) Profit-sharing and Bonus Plans

The Group recognizes a liability and an expense for honuses and profit-sharing, hased
on a formula that takes into consideration the profit attributable to the Group’s
shareholders after certain adjustments. The Group recognizes a provision where it is
contractually obliged to pay the henefits, or where there is a past practice that has
created a constructive ohligation.

(e) Compensated Absences

Compensated absences are recognized for the number of paid leave days

(including holiday entitlement) remaining at the end of the reporting petiod. They are
included in Trade and Other Payahles account in the consolidated statement of
finandial position at the undiscounted amount that the Group expects to pay as a result
of the unused entitlement. '

2.19 Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs are recognized as expenses in the pedod in which they are incurred, except
to the extent that they are capitalized. Borrowing costs that ate attrihutable to the
acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset (L., an asset that takes a
suhstantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale) are capitalized as part of
cost of such asset. The capitalization of borrowing costs commences when expenditures
for the asset and hortowing costs are being incurred and activities that are necessaty to
ptepate the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalization ceases when
substantially all such activities are complete.

v
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Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific bortrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying asscts is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalization.

2.20 Income Taxes .

Tax expense recoguized in profit or loss comptises the sum of deferred tax and current tax
not recognized in other comprehensive income o1 directly in equity, if any.

Current tax assets or Kabilities comprise those claims from, or obligations to, fiscal
authorities relating to the current or prior teporting period, that are uncollected or unpaid
at the end of reporting period. They are calculated according to the tax rates and tax laws
applicable to the fiscal periods to which they relate, based on the taxable profit for the year.
All changes to cutrent tax assets or liabilities are recognized as a component of tax expensc
in profit or loss.

Deferred tax is accounted for using the liability method on temporary differences at the end
of reporting period between the tax base of assets and liabilities and theix carrying amounts
for financial reporting purpases. Under the liability method, with certain exceptions,
deferred tax Liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax
assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences and the carryforward of
unused tax losses and unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences can be utilized.
Unrecognized deferred tax assets, if any, are reassessed at the end of each reporting period
and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that futute taxable profit will
be available to allow such deferred tax assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and Labilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled provided such tax rates have
been enacted ot substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of cach reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all of part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that
would follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting
period, to recover ot settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. For purposes of
measuring deferred tax Liabilities and deferred tax assets for land held for sale and land
development costs, the carrying amount of such properties is presumed to be recovered
entirely through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted, that is when the land held for sale
and development costs ate held within the business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the econamic benefits embodied in the property aver time, rather than
through sale.

Most changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognized as a component of tax
expense in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in other
comprehensive income o directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognized in other
comprehensive income ot dizrectly in equity, respectively.
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Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if the Group has a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred
taxes relate to the same entity and the same taxation authority.

2.21 Offserting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities ate offset and the resulting net amount, considered
as a single financial asset or financial liability, is reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position when the Group currently has legally enforceable right to set off the
recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realize the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. The zight of set-off must be available at the end of the
reporting period, that is, it is not contingent on future event. Tt must also be enforceable in
the normal course of business, in the event of default, and in the event of insolvency or
bankruptcy; and must be legally enforceable for both entity and all counterparties to the
financial instruments.

2.22 Related Party Transactions and Relationships

Related party transactions are transfer of resources, services or obligations between the
Group and its related parties, regardless whether a price is charged.

Parties are considered to be related if ome party has the ability to control the other patty or
exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating
decisions. This includes: {a) individuals owning, directly or indirectly throupgh one or more
intermediaries, control or ate controlled by, or under common control with the Group;

(b) associates; (c) individuals owning, directly or indirectly, an interest in the voting power
of the Group that gives them significant influence ovet the Group and close members of
the family of any such individual; and, (d) the Group’s funded retirement plan.

In considering each possible related party telationship, attenton is directed to the substance
of the relationship and not merely on the legal form.

2.23 Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting
provided to the Group’s BOD and management committee responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments.

In identifying its operating segments, management generally follows the Group’s products
and service lines as disclosed in Note 29 which represent the main products and services
provided by the Group.

Each of these operating segments is managed separately as each of these service lines
requires different technologies and other resources as well as marketing approaches.
All inter-segment transfers are carried out at arm's lengtb prices.

The measurement policies the Group uses for segment reporting under PFRS § are the
same as those used in its consolidated financial statements, except that post-employment
benefit expenses are not included in artiving at the operating profit of the operating
segments.
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In addition, corporate assets which are not directly attributable to the business activities of
any operating segment are not allocated to a segment.

There have been no changes from prior periads in the measurement methods used to
determine reported segment profit or loss.

2.24 Equity
Preferred and common stock represents the nominal value of shares that have been issued.

Additional paid-in capital includes any premiums received on the initial issuance of capital
stock. Any transaction costs associated with the issuance of shares are deducted from
additional paid-in capital, net of any related income tax benefits.

Revaluation reserves comptise of gains and losses arising from the revaluation of the
Group’s tankers and from the remeasurements of post-employment defined benefit
obligation, net of applicable taxes.

Other reserves pertain to the difference between the Parent Company’s cost of investment
and the acquired net assets of CSC accounted for under the pooling-of-interest method
(see Notes 2.3 and 2.13).

Retained earnings include all current and prior period results of operations as reported in
the profit or loss section of the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, reduced
by the amounts of dividends declared,

2.25 Earnings per Shate

Basic earnings per share (EPS) is computed by dividing net income attributable to common
shateholders by the weighted average number of common shares issued and outstanding,
adjusted retroactively for any stock dividend, stock split ot reverse stock split declaced during
the current peniod.

Diluted EPS is computed by adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding to assume conversion of dilutive potential shares.

2.26 Events After the End of the Reporting Petiod

Any post-year-end event that provides additional information about the Group’s position at
the end of the reporting period (adjusting event) is reflected in the consolidated financial
statements. Post-year-end events that are not adjusting events, if any, are disclosed when
matenial to the consolidated financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Grovp’s consolidated financial statements in accordance with PFRS
requites management to make judgments and estimates that affect amounts reported in the
consolidated financial statements and related notes. Judgments and estimates ate ’
continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to he reasonahle under the circumstances.
Actual results may ultimately differ from these estimates.

3.1 Critical Management Judgments in Applying Accounting Policies

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the
following judgments, apart from those involving estimation, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognized in the consolidated finandial statements:

(a} Distinguishing Operating and Pinance Leases

The Group has entered into various lease agreements. Ctitical judgment was exercised
by management to distinguish each lease agreement, either as a lessor ot a lessee, as
either an operating or finance lease by looking at the transfer or tetention of significant
risks and rewatds of ownership of the properties covered hy the agreements. Failure
to make the right judgment will result in eithet overstatement ot understatement of
assets and Habilities. Certain hauling and heavy equipment are accounted for under
finance lease. |

(b} Recopmition of Provisions and Conlingenvies

Judgiment is exercised by management to distinguish between provisions and .
contingencies. Policies on recognition of provisions and contingencies are discussed
in Note 2.12 and disclosures on relevant contingencies ate presented in Note 30.

(&) Owaltfying Assels on Borrowing Cosis

A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use or sale. Determining if an asset is a qualifying asset will
depend on the circuimstances and requires the use of judgment in each case. In
making judgment, the management takes into account its intention when it defermines
whether the asset is a qualifying asset and considers the facts and circumstances and
uses its judgment to determine whether an asset takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale. Based on the facts and circumstances affecting
the Group’s qualifying asset, the management concludes that the Group’s retail station,
depot facilities, tankers and land held for sale and development costs are qualifying
assets as the management assesses that it takes substantial period of time for the
completion of those assets.
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(@) Revenue Recognition for Charter Bee Arrangemenis

In determining the appropriate method to use in recognizing the Group’s revenue
from T'C, CVC and BB, management considers the following criteria: (1) whether the
fuifilment of the arrangement is dependent on thie use of a specific vessel; and,

{2} whether the arrangement conveys a tight to use the vessel. Management
determitied that if botls criteria are met, the revenue should be recognized using the
straight-line method over the term of the contract (see Note 2.14). Otherwise,
revenue will be recognized based ou contract terms wlien substantial agreed tasks liave
been rendered.

3.2 Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that liave a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
reporting period:

(@) Impairment of Trade and Other Receivables and Due from Related Parties )

)

Adequate amount of allowance for impaitment is provided for specific and group of
accounts, where objective evidence of impairment exists. 'Tlie Group evaluates the
amount of allowance for impaitment based on available facts and circumstances
affecting the collectibility of the accounts, including, but not limited to, the length of
the Group’s relationship with the customers, the custotners’ cuttent ctedit status,
average age of accounts, collection experience and historical loss experience. The
ntethodology and assumptions used in estimating future cash flows are reviewed
regulasly by the Company to reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual
loss experience.

The carrying value of trade and other receivables and the analysis of allowance for
impairment on such financial assets are shown in Note 7. The carrying value of due
from related parties is shown in Note 26.4. The Group has detetmined that no
impaitment Joss on Due from Related Parties account showdd be recognized iu 2014,
2013 and 2012.

Deterntining Net Realizable Value of Inentorier

In determining the et realizable value of inventories, management takes into account
the most reliable evidence available at the times the estimates ave made. Future
tealization of the carrying amounts of inventories, as presented in Note 8, is affectcd by
price changes and actton from the competitors. Both aspects are considered key
sources of estimation uncertainty and may cause significant adjustments to the Group’s
inventoties within the next fmancial reporting petiod.
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Deiernsining Net Realizabie Vake of Land Held for Saile and Land Development Corts und Land
Held for Future Developrent

In determiniag the net realizable value of land held for sale and land development costs
and land held for future development, management takes into account the most reliable
evidence available at the time the estimates are made. Futute realization of the catrying
amounts of land held for sale and development costs and land held for future
development is affected by price changes and demand from the target market segments,
Both aspects are considered key soutces of estimation uncertainty and may cause
significant adjusttnents within the next financial reporting period.

Estimating Usefial Lives of Property and Equipment and Drydocking Costs .

The Group estimates the useful lives of property and equipment and drydocking costs
based on the period over which the assets are expected to be available for use. The
estimated useful lives of property and equipment and diydocking costs ate reviewed
periodically and are updated if expectations differ from previous estimates due to
physical wear and tear, technical or commercial obsolescence and legal or other limits
on the use of the assets.

The cartying amounts of propetty and equipment and drydocking costs are analyzed in
Notes 12 and 15, respectively. Based on management’s assessment as of

December 31, 2014 and 2013, thete is no change in the cstimated useful lives of the
property and equipment and drydocking costs during those years. Actual results,
however, may vary due to changes in estimates brought about by changes in factors
mentioned above.

Fair Valye Measurement of Tankers

The Group’s tankers, presented as part of the Property and Equipment account, are
carried at revalued amount at the end of the reporting period. In determining the fair
values of these assets, the Group engages the services of professional and independent
appraisers applying the relevant valuation methodologies as discussed in Note 5.4.

For tankers with appraisals conducted prior to the end of the current reporting period,
management determines whether there are significant circurnstances during the -
intervening period that may require adjustments or changes in the disclosure of fair
value of the Group’s tankers.

A significant change in these elements may affect prices and the value of the assets.
The amounts of revaluation and fair value gains recognized on the Group’s tankers are
disclosed in Note 12.
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Determining Roalizable Amount of Deferred Tave Assels

The Group reviews its deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting period and
reduces the carrying amount to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be
utilized. Management assessed that the deferred tax assets recognized as of
December 31, 2014 and 2013 will be fully utilized in the coming years. The carrying
value of deferred tax assets as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 is disclosed in Note 25.

Estimaring Liability for Land Development

Obligations to complete development of real estate are based on actual costs and
project estimates of the Group’s contractors and technical personnel. These costs are
reviewed at least annually and are updated if expectations differ from previous
estimates. Liability to complete the project for sold units included in the determination
of cost of sales amountiog to P0.1 million as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, ate
presented as part of accrued expenses under Trade and Other Payables zccount in the
consolidated statements of financial position (see Note 18).

Valuation of Post-esmployment Defined Bencfit Obligation

‘The determination of the Group’s abligation and cost of post-employment defined

benefit is dependent on the selection of certain assumptions used by actuaries in
calculating such amounts. Those assumptions are described in Note 23 and include,
among others, discount rates and salary increase rate. In accordance with PFRS, actal
results that differ from the assumptions are accumulated and amortized over Future
petiods and therefore, generally affect the recognized expense and recorded obligation
in such future periods.

The amounts of retitement benefit obligation and expense and an analysis of the
movements in the estimated present value of retirement benefit obligation are
presented in Note 23.2.

Ertirnating Developmront Coste

The accounting for real estate requires the use of estimates in determining costs and
gross profit recognition. Cost of real estate sold (under Cost of Sales and Services in
the consolidated staterment of comprehensive income) includes estitmated costs for
future development. The development cost of the project is estimated by the Group’s
contractors and technical personnel. Many factors influence a project developtnent
cost estimate, which include among others, the geographic location of the project,
quantity of materials and item availability, general soil conditions and scheduling of
resources including labor and equipment. At the end of reporting period, these
estimates are reviewed and revised to reflect the current conditions, when necessary.
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Impairment of Non-Tinancial Assets

In assessing impairinent, inanagement estimates the recoverable amount of each asset
or a cash-generating unit based on expected future cash flows and uses an interest rate
to discount such. Estimation uncertainty relates to assumnptions about future operating
tesults and the determination of a suitable discount rate (see Note 2.17). Though
management believes that the assumptions used in the esimation of fair values
reflected in the consolidated financial statements are appropriate and reasonable,
significant changes in these assumptions may materially affect the assessment of
recoverable values and any resulting impaisment loss could have a material adverse
effect on the results of operations.

Management has assessed that no impairment Josses are required to be recognized on
the Group’s non-financial assets in 2014, 2013 and 2012.

(&) DBusiness Conthinations

On inirial recognition, the assets and liabilities of the acquired business and the
consideration paid for them are included in the consolidated financial statements at,
their fair values. In measuring fair value, management uses estimates of future cash
flows and discount rates. Any subsequent change in these estimates would affect the
amount of goodwill if the change qualifies as 2 measurement period adjustment. Any
other change would be recogaized in profit or loss in the subsequent period.

RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group 1s exposed to a varety of financial risks in relation to financial instruments.
The Group’s financial assets and liabilities by category are summarized in Note 5. The
main types of risks are market risk, credit risk and liquidity tisk.

The Group’s risk management is coordinated with its Parent Company, in close :
cooperation with the BOD, and focuses on actively secuting the Group’s
shoit to medium-terin cash flows by minimizing the exposute to financial markets.

The Group does not engage in the trading of financial assets for speculative purposes nor
does it write options. The most significant financial tisks to which the Group is exposed o
ate described in the succeeding pages.
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4.1 Marcket Risk

The Group is exposed to market risk through its use of financial instruments and
specifically to foreign currency risk and interest rate risk which result from both its
operating, investing and financing activities.

() Foresgn Curvengy Rirk

Most of the Group’s transactions ate cartied out in Philippine pesos, its functional
currency. Exposures to curtency exchange rates arise from the Group’s sales to a certain
customet and, fuel and tanker importations, which are primarily denominated in T1.8.
dollars (US$). The liability covering the fuel importation is covered by letter of credits ,
which is subsequently closed to Philippine peso trusts receipts (TRs). Further, the Group
has several U.S. dollar loans from certain banks which wete used to finance its capital
expenditutes (see Note 17). The Group alse holds U.8. dollar-denominated cash and cash
equivalents.

To mitigate the Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk, non-Philippine peso cash flows
are monitored.

Foreign currency-denominated financial assets and financial liabilities, translated into
Philippine pesos at the closing rate follow:

2014 2013
Financial assets P4,383,654,349 P 1,174,762,469
Financial liabilities (_2.988,051,570) (1465688 .449)

Net exposure P1,395,602,779 (D 290,925 980)

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the Group’s profit before tax with tespect
to changes in Philippine peso against U.S dollar exchange rates. The percentage changes in
rates have been determined based on the average market volatility in exchange rates, using
standard deviation, in the previous 12 months at a 99% confidence level,

2014 2013
Reasonably possible change in rate 27.8% 23.4%
Effect in profit before tax P 387,977,573 (P 68,076,679)
Effect in equity after tax 271,584,301 { 47,653,675)

Exposures to foreign exchange rates vary during the year depending on the volume of
foreign cutrency denominated transactions, Nonetheless, the analysis above is considered
to be representative of the Group’s currency risk.

{b) Initeress Rate Rick

The Group’s policy is to minimize interest rate cash flow tisk exposures on long-term
financing. Long term borrowings are therefore usually made at fixed rates. As of
December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Group is exposed to changes in market interest rates
through its cash and cash equivalents and bank borrowings, which ate subject to variable
interest rates (see Notes 6 and 17). All other financial assets and liabilities have fixed rates.
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Cash in banks ate tested on a reasonably possible change of +/-0.96% and +/-1.10% in
2014 and 2013, respectively. Banks loans subject to variable interest rates are tested on a
reasonably possible change of +/-0.68% and +/-1.67% for Philippine peso and

+/-0.31% and +/-0.69% for U.S. doltar in 2014 and 2013, respectively. These percentages
have been determined based on the average market volatility of interest rates, using |
standard deviation, in the previous 12 months estimated at 99% level of confidence. The
sensitivity analysis is based on the Group’s financial instruments held at the end of the each
reporting petiod, with effect estimated from the beginning of the year. All other variables
are held constant.

The changes in percentages would affect profit or loss before tax by +/-P68.2 million and
+/- P85.9 million for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

(¢}  Other Price Risk

The Group’s matket price risk atises from its purchases of fuels. It manages its risk arising
from changes in market prices by monitoring the daily movement of the market price of
fuels and to some extent, using forward and other similar contracts to manage the
fluctuation of the fuel price.

4.2 Credir Risk

Credit nsk is the risk that a counterparty may fail to discharge an ohligation to the Group.
The Group is exposed to this risk for various financial instcaments arising from granting of
loans and selling goods and services to customers including related parties; and placing
deposits with banks.

The Group contituously monitors defaults of customers and other counterparties,
identified either individually or by group, and incorporates this information into its credit
tisk controls. The Group’s policy 1s to deal only with creditworthy counterpasties. In
addition, for a significant proportion of sales, advance payments ate received to mitigate
credit risk,

Generally, the maximum credit risk exposure of financial assets is the catrying amount of
the financial assets as shown in the consolidated statements of financial position ot in the
detailed analysis provided in the notes to the consolidated financial statements, as
summarized below.

Notes 2014 2013
Cash and cash equivalents 6 P 555,508,720 P 357220520
Trade and other receivables —net 7 3,789,225,134 6,402,695,635
Due from related parties 26.4 10,373,356 2,747,994
Restricted deposits 10, 15 71,670,538 96,683 441
Refundable rental deposits 15 172,226,696 180,951,286
P 4,599.004,444 P7.040,298.876

The Group’s management considers that all the above financial assets that ate not impaired
ot past due for each reporting dates are of good credit quality.
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None of the financial assets are secured by collateral or other credit enhancements, except
for cash and cash equivalents as described below.

(a) Cash and Cash Eguivalents

The credit tisk for cash and cash equivalents is considered negligible, since the
countetpattics are teputable banks with high quality external credit ratings. Included in the
cash and cash equivalents are cash in banks and short-term placements which are insured
by the Philippine Deposit Insurance Corporation up to 2 maximum coverage of

P0.5 million for every depositor per banking institution.

(b} Trade and Other Receivabies and Due from Related Parties

In respect of trade and other receivables, the Group is not exposed to any significant credit
risk exposure to any single counterpacty or any group of counterparties having similar
characteristics. Trade teceivables consist of a large number of customers in vagious
industries and geographical aseas. Based on historical information about customer default
rates, management considers the credit quality of trade receivables that are not past due or
impaired to be good.

The Group has a Credit Committee which approves credit lines given to its customers. +
The Group’s Credit and Collection Department, which regularly reposts to the Credit
Committee, continuously monitors customers’ performance and other counterparties,
identified cither individually or by group, and Incorporates this information into its credit
risk controls. Where available at a reasonable cost, external credit ratings and/or reports on
customers and other counterpatties are obtained and used. The Group’s policy is to deal
only with creditworthy countesparties.

Some of the unimpaired trade and other receivables are past due at the end of the reporting
date. The age of financial assets past due but not impaired is as follows:

2014 2013

Not mote than one month P 205,924,748 T 182,306,369
More than one month

but not more than two months 152,505,688 149,532,251
Mote than two months but

not more than six months 87,978,949 120,856,868
More than six months but not

more than one year 74,091,227 69,157,737
Mare than ane year 86,449,908 45,598,603

P_606950,520 P 567.451.828

In respect of due from related parties, the Group has assessed that these advances ate
collectible and the credit risk exposure is considered to be low. '

4.3 Ligquidity Risk

The Group manages its liquidity needs by carefully monitoting scheduled debt servicing
payments for fong-term financial Habilities as well as cash outflows due in a day-to-day
business. Liquidity needs are monitorcd in various time hands, on a day-to-day and
week-to-week basis, as well as on the basis of a solling 30-day projection. Long-term
liquidity needs for a 6-month and one-year period are identified monthly.

162
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The Group maintains cash and cash equivalents to meet its liquidity requitements for up to
60-day periods. Excess cash are invested in time deposits. Funding for long-term liquidity

needs 1s additionally secured by an adequate amount of committed credit facilities and the
ability to sell long-term financial assets,

As of December 31, 2014, the Group’s financial liabilities have contractual maturities which
ate summarized as follows:

Current Non-current
Within 6to 12 1t b
6 months months years
Interest-beazing loans )
and borrowings P 7,011,246,094 P 1,692,894,035 P 6,116,547,965
Trade and other payables
{excluding tax-related
payables) 3,193,805,959 517,524,441 -
Due to related parties 17,204,725 - -
Security deposits - - 1588325.351

P10,222,256,778 B _2,210418.476 P_6,274,873.316

This compares to the maturity of the Group’s financial lizbiltties as of

December 31, 2013 as presented below.

Current Non-current
Within 6tol2 lwo5
6 monthg months vears

Interest-bearing loans

and borrowings P 6,050,573,611 P 2726,331,756 P 6,007,722,903
Trade and other payables

{excluding tax-related

payables) 818,142,220 451,750,258 -
Due to related parties 33,991,925 30,169,318 -
Security deposits - - 275,962,723
P 6902707756 P 3208251332 P 6283685626

The contractual maturities of the financial liabilities reflect the gross cash flows, which may
differ from the carrying values of the liabilities at the end of the reporting periods.
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See Notes 2.4 and 2.11 for a description of the accouanting policies for each category of
financial instruments including the determination of fair values. A description of the

Group’s risk management ohjectives and policies for financial instruments is provided
in Note 4.

5.2 Fair Valye Hierarchy

In accordance with PFRS 13, the fair value of financial assets and financial liahilities
and non-financial assets which are measured at fair value on a recurring or
nop-recurring basis and those assets and liabilities not measuced at fair value but for
which fair value is disclosed in accordance with other relevant PFRS, are categorized
into three levels based on the significance of inputs used to measure the fait value. The
fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

(a)  Level 1. quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical asscts or liabilities
that an entity can access at the measnrement date;

(b) TLevel 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 th’lt are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly (i.c. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from
ptices); and,

{c) Level 3: inputs for the asset ot liability that are not based on observable market data
{(unobservable inputs).

The level within which the asset ot liability is classified is determined based on the lowest
level of significant inpuit to the fait value measutement.

For purposes of determining the matket value at Level 1, a market is regarded as active if
quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry
group, pricing sexvice, or regulatory agency, and those prices reptesent actual and regularly
occutring market transactions on an atm’s length basis.

5.3 Fair Instruments Measured at Amortized Cost for which Fair Value is
Disclosed :

The table below and in the next page summarizes the fair value hierarchy of the Group’s
financial assets and financial hiabilities which are not measured at fair value in the
consolidated statements of financial position but for which fair value is disclosed.

2014
Naotes Level Level2 Lc@l 3 Total
Financinf Assety
Locent ard vecoirerbior
Cash and cash cquivalents 6 1 555,508,720 P - P - I 555,508,720
Trade and other recervables - net 7 - - 3,789,205,134  3,788,225,134
Due from relared pacties 26.4 - - 10,373,356 10,373,356
Restricted depogins 10,15 71,670,538 - - 71,670,538
Refundable rental doposits 15 - - 172,226 696 172,226,694

P 627779258 P . . P3971825,136 P4,599.004.444
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2014
Nores Levall Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Linbikties
Fiinancial labifities at caortized cst:
Interest-beating Inans
and horeowings 17 T - b - T 13842,643,397 P 13,812,663,297
Trade and other payables i8 - - 3.711.330,400 3,711,330,100
Due to related patties 264 - - 17.204.725 17,20:0,725
Security deposits 19 - - 158335451 138.3725,331
.
P P EOTI0MAR RAZI05038T3
2013
Notes leveld Level 2 level 3 Fotal
Financial Asscis
Faans and reeivables:
Cash and cash equivalents & P 357,220,520 P - P - T 357,220,520
Trade and other teceivables - net 7 - - 6,402,695,635  6,402,6Y5,635
Due from celated pacties 26.4 - - 2,747,094 2,747994
Restricted deponils 10, 15 96,683,441 - - 96,683,441
Refundable tental deposits 15 - - 180951.280 _ 180,951286
P_45300395] P - p 04915 7040298876
Financial Liabilitics
Vinancial lnbilitiar at anorticed mu:
Intecest-bearing loans
and borowings 17 P - P - T 13751, 738817 P 15,741,738,817
Trade and other payables 18 - - 1,269,892.478 1,269,892,478
Due to related patties 264 - - 61161242 64,161,243
Security deposits 19 . - 275962723 275962773
B = 2 - P15361.755261 P 15361,755,261
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For financial asset with fair value included in Level 1, management considers that the
carrying amount of this short-term financial instrument approximates its fair vahe.

The fair values of the financial assets and financial liabilities included in Level 3 in the
preceding page, which are not ttaded in an active market is determined by using genemﬂy
acceptable pricing models and valuation techniques or by reference to the current market
value of another instrument which is substantially the same after taking into account the
related credit tisk of counterparties, or is calculated based on the expected cash flows of the
undeslying net asset base of the instrument.

When the Group uses valuation technique, it maximizes the use of observable matket data
where it is available and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. Since not all
significant inputs required to determine the fair value of the other instruments not included
in Level 1 are observable, these are included in Tevel 3.

5.4 Fair Value Measurements for Non-financial Assets S
d) Determining Fair Vale of Tankers

The fair values of the Group’s tankers, included as part of the Property and Equipment
account, were determined based on the appraisal reports of a professional and independent
appraiser with appropriate qualifications and recent experience in the valuation of similar
propertics. To some extent, the valuation process was conducted by the appraiser in
discussion with the Group’s management with respect to the determination of the inputs
such as the size, age, and condition of the tanker.

In esttmating the fair value of these tankers, management takes into account the market
participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the assets in their highest and
best use. Based on management assessment, the best use of the Group’s non-financial
assets indicated above is their current use.

The Level 3 fair value of tankers was determined using the cost approach that reflects the
cost to a market participant to consrruct an asset of comparable usage, construction
standards, design and layout, adjusted for obsolescence. The more significant mputs used
in the valuation include direct and indirect costs of construction such as but not limited to,
labor and contractor’s profit, materials and equiptnent, sutveying and permit costs,
electricity and utility costs, architectural and engineering fees, insurance and legal fees.
These mputs were defived from various suppliers and contractor’s quotes, price catalogues,
and construction price indices. Under this approach, higher estimated costs used in the,
valuation will result in higher fair value of the properties.

b) Other Fair Value Information

The reconciliation of the carrying amount of tankers included in Level 3 is presented in
Note 12.2.

There has been no change to the valuation techniques used by the Group during the year

for its non-financial assets. Also, there were no transfers into or out of Level 3 fair value

hierarchy in 2014 and 2013,

s
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5.5 Offsctting of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
The following financial assets with net amounts presented in the consolidated statements of

financial position are subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements and
similar agreerments:

Deccember 31, 2014

Gross amounty recognized in the Netamount  Related amounts not sct offin the
consolidated statement ol prescnted in consolidated statement of .
finangial_position the consalidated financial position
Financial statement of
iizbilifies [ma ncial Financial Cash collateral

Linancial assets seg off positiog nstmments received Net ampount

Trade and other

teceivables P 4H031,673,199 (P 242,448,065 P 3,780,225,134 P - P - T 3,789,225.134
Restricted deposits 70,406 743 - 70,406,743 { 20.406.743) - -
B__4,102.079,942 (B . 242448 06R) P 3.859,631,877 (P 70406741 P - P 3,780,205,134
Degember 31, 20135
Gross amonnts recogized in the Netamount  Related amounts not ret off in the
consalidated statement of presented in consolidated statement of
finangial posidon the consolidated financial position
Financinl statement of .
liabilitics froancial Financial Cash collateral
TFinancial asgels set o ff position inshruments eeeived Net amount
Restricted deposits P D8.:419.646 P - I 95,419,646 (P95 410,446 T - P -

The following financial liabilities with net amounts presented in the consolidated
statements of financial position are subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting
arrangements and similar agreements:

Diccember 31, 2014

Gross amounts tocognized in the Netamount  Related amounts nos get off in the
congolidated statement of peeseated in consoliclated statement of
fGnancial position the consalidated fnancial pasition
Financial statement of .
Financial ARsEEs fnaneial [inancinl Cash collateeal
lighilitics sct off position instruments cecoiyed Net amount
Tnterest-heating loana
and borwings > 13,842,643397 P - P 13842,643,397 (P 70,406,743) 1 - 17 13,772,236,654
Treade and other
payables 3,769,778,465 ( 58,448,065)  3,711,330,400 - - 3,711,330,400
Sccutity deposits 342325351 184.000.000) 158,325 351 - - 158,325,351
B__17,954,747.213 (R__242.448.,065) P 17,712.299,148 (2_70,406,743) P = D17:641,892.405
December 31, 2013
Gross amounts recognized in the Netamount  Related amounts not set offin the
consolickited statement of presented in congnlidated statement of
— fugmeilpogition  theconsolidated __ _ financial position
Financial slatemnent of
Finaucial assets financial Financial - Cash collateral '
tiapilities ser off position ingteornents received Net amount
Inteeest-bearing loans =
and borrowings P 13751738817 P - P78 238 817 (P 95,419,646} I - P 13.656,319.171

A48
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6. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents include the following components as of December 31:

2014 2013
Revolving fund r 1,131,815 P 21,213,984
Cash on hand 10,335,747 7,731,306
Cash in banks 538,072,742 249,585 435
Short-term placements 5,968,416 78.689.795
P 555, 20 357,226,520

Cash in baaks generally earn interest based on daily bank deposit rates ranging from 0.10%
to 3.00% per annum in all years presented. Short-term placements are made for vatying
periods ranging from 7 to 90 days and earn effective interest ranging from 2.10% to 7.10%
per annum in all years presented. Interest income earned amounted to P2.8 million,

P7.8 million and P9.4 million in 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively, and is included as patt
of Finance Income in the statements of comprehensive income {see Note 22.2).

The balances of cash in banks as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 exclude restricted time
deposits amounting to P71.7 million and P96.7 million, respectively, which ate shown as
Restricted Deposits account (see Note 10} and restricted time deposits under Other Non-
cutrent Assets (see Note 15) in the consolidated statements of financial position. Such
amounts are not available for the general use of the Group under the loan agreement (see

Note 17.1).

7. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

This account is composed of the following:

Notes 2014 2013

Trade recetvables: )
Third parties P3,771,130,305 P 6,323,073,299
Related parties 26.1 25,524,583 37,334,222
3,796,654,888 6.360.407.521
Advances to suppliers: ’
Third parties 30.7 4,001,272,283 924,304,898
Related parties 26.2 10,024,300 2,000,000
: 4,011,297,083 926,304,898
Non-trade receivables 242 324,636 237344364
Adwances subject to liquidation 32,189,974 14.793.393
Other teceivables 34,636,908 49257 584
8,117,103,489 7.588,107,760

Allowance for impairment

(__284,391,208) (244313 834)

P 7,852,712,191

407
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All of the Group’s trade and other receivables have been reviewed for indications of
impairment. Certain trade and other receivables, which atre due from customers, were
found to be impaired; hence, adequate amount of allowance for impatrment has been
recorded as of December 31, 2014 and 2013. Impairment losses amounted to

P40.1 million, P18.0 million and P37.9 million in 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively, and are
presented as part of Finance Costs under the Other Charges (Income) account in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income (see Note 22.1).

A reconciliation of the allowance for impairment at the beginning and end of 2014 and
2013 is shown below.

Note 2014 2013
Balance at beginning of yeat P 244,313,834 P 226,354,832
Impairment loss for the year 221 40,077,464 17.959.002

Balance at end of year P 284,391,298 > 244313 834

Trade and other receivables do not bear any interest. All receivables are subject to credit
risk exposure (see Note 4.2).

Advances to suppliers include amounts initially paid to foreign corporation amounting to
P89.6 million (US$2.0 million) as of December 31, 2014, in relation to the Memorandum of
Agreement (MOA) entered into by PNX — Chelsea for the importation of one unit of oil
tanker vessel (MT Chelsea Denise IT) from China for a total consideration of $7.3 million.

Non-trade recetvables mostly pertain to receivable from locators and accrued rent and
franchise income. Non-trade receivables also include P12.9 million and P12.7 million worth
of reimbursable costs incutred by the Group as of December 31, 2014 and 2013,
respectively, in relation to its TC agreement with a cettain third party. )
Other receivables include partial claims from an insurance company amounting to

P32.9 million and P31.9 million as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, which is
related to an incident encountered by certain vessels of the Group and one of FTC’s
tugboats. The amount represents the actual costs incurred for the vessels, net of the
applicable deductible clause. In 2014, the Group received a notice of the final amount to
be settled by the insurance company based on the computations provided by the adjuster.
Out of the outstanding claim of the Group of P32.9 million, only P29.0 million will be
collectible; hence, the remaining batance of P3.9 million was recognized as Loss on
settlement of insurance claims, which is presented as part of Finance Costs in the 2014
consolidated statement of comprehensive income {see Note 22.1}. .

Cettain trade receivables amounting to P33.3 million and P15.5 million as of
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, were used as collateral to the Group’s
interest-bearing loans and botrowings [see Notes 17.5(a), 17.5¢4) and 17.5(]].



Y

8. INVENTORIES

Inventories which are stated at cost are broken down as follows:

2014 ‘ 2013
Truel P2,564,596,748 P 3,589,175,766
Lubricants 306,133,400 223,353,772
Others 98,921 3,135

P2,870,829.069 P3812532673

Under the terms of agreements covering the liabilities under trust receipts, inventories wirh
carrying amount of I'2,138.5 million and ’3,554.4 million as of December 31, 2014 and 2013,
respectively, have been released to the Group in trust for the bank. The Group is
accountable to the bank for the trusteed inventories or their sales proceeds (see Note 17.1).
There were no inventory write-down in all of the years presented.

An analysis of the cost of inventories included in the cost of fuels and lubricants sold in each

year is presented in Note 20.1.

9, LAND HELD FOR SALE AND LAND DEVELOPMENT COSTS

The land held for sale and land development costs stated at cost relate to the following as of

December 31:
2014 2013
Land held for sale P 450,786,035 P 483927707
Land development costs 35,199,776 19744767

P 485,985,811 D 503.672474

The Jand held for sale was used as security for the Group’s installtnent payable with Land
Bank of the Philippines (LBP) [see Note 17.2(2)].

Land development costs pertain to expendituses for the development and improvement of
the land held for sale of the Patk
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RESTRICTED DEPOSITS

This account pertains to the titne deposits that are used as securities for various banking
credit facilities covered by hold-out agreements (see Notes 6 and 17.1) amounting to

P70.4 million and P95.4 million as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, tespectively. As such,
these are restricted as to withdrawals. The proceeds from availment of the banking credit
facilities by the Group ate used for the purpose of purchasing fuel and lubricant supplies |
(see Note 17.1). Interest rates for this type of deposit range from 2.40% to 5.98% per annum
for all the yeats presented.

PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

The composition of this account as of December 31 is shown below:

2014 ' 2013
Prepayments P 577,645,850 T 167,721,208
Creditable withholding tax - 353,395,385 174,300,564
Supplies 215,476,323 144,038,688
Others 114,982 3852717

P1146,632,540 P__ 489913177

7 -
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12.1 Acquisition of Vessel = MT Chelsea Donatela

In 2013, PNX — Chelsea entered into a MOA with a foreign corporation for the
importation of one unit of oil tank vessel (MT Chelsea Donatela) from China for
US$21.2 million [see Note 17.2(g)]. The construction of the vessel was completed in
2014 and had its first voyage on July 15, 2014.

As of Decemher 31, 2013, the vessel is still under construction. Since the vessel is not yet
ready for use, the contract price of the vessel, costs incurred for the major improvements
made to the vessel and other incidental costs totaling P418.6 million are 1ecogn17ed as
construction ia progress and presented as patt of Property and Equipment - net in the
2013 consolidated statement of financial position. The whole amount was then
reclassified to tankers in 2014 upon completion of the vessel.

MT Chelsea Donatela is used as collateral to secute the payment of interest-bearing loan
obtained ta finance the acquisition of the vessel [see Nate 17.2(z].

12.2 Fair Value of Tankers

The Group’s tankets ate stated at their revalued amounts, being the fait value at the date
of revaluation, less any subsequent accurmulbated depreciation and impairment losses. The
revaluation surplus, net of applicable deferred income taxes, is presented as patt of
Revaluation Reserves account in the equity section of the consolidated statetnents of
financial position (see Note 27.5).

The information on the fair value measurement and disclosures related to the revalued
tankers are presented in Note 5.4.

If the tankers were catried using the cost model, the cost, accummlated depreciation and
carrying amount as of December 31 would be as follows:

2014 2013
Cost P5,005411,437 P 4,843.406,123
Accumulated depreciation (_ 848,386,914) (__ 671.334.763)

P5,057,024,523 P 4,172,071.360

12.3 Borrowing Costs

Construction in progress inclades accumulated costs incurred on the various depot
facilities and retail stations being constructed as part of the Group’s expansion program,
including capitalized borrowing costs of P70.7 million and P71.4 miltion as of .
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, representing the actual borrowing costs
incurted on borrowings obtained to fund the retail stations and depot facilities. The
average capitalizaton rate used was 8.5% both in 2014 and 2013,
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124 Collaterals

Port expansion facilities with czrrying value of P192.9 million as of December 31, 2013, are
used to secure the Group’s instaliment payable with LBP [see Note 17.2(a]].

Certain property and equipment with an aggregate carrying valie of nil and P24.2 ml]llon a8
of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, are mortgaged with local banks
[see Note 17. 2(;‘)]

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, certain tankets owned by the Group with carrying
value of P1,483.7 million and P’1,420.1 million as of December 31, 2014 and 2013,
respectively, were used as collaterals for the interest-bearing loans from vartous local

commercial banks [see Notes 17.2(z), 17.4, 17.5(a) and 17.5(3)].

Moreovet, cettain setvice vehicle of the Group with catrying value of P3.0 million and
P40.9 million as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, was used as collateral for
mortgage payable (see Note 17.7).

12.5 Finance Lease

The carrying amount of hauling and heavy equipment held under finance lease amounted
ta P19.5 million and P23.7 million as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively

(see Note 17.6}.

12.6 Depreciation and Amortization

The amount of depreciation and amortization is allocated as follows:

Notes 2014 2013 2012
Cost of services 20.2 P 201,694,106 P 149,726,182 P 122,984},227
Selling and
administrative
expenses 408,823.499 334,253,594 258.443,669

21 P 610517605 P 483979776 P 381,427,896

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the cost of fully-depreciated property and equipment
still used in operations amounted to P247.0 million and P146.7 million, respectively.
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INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE
The Group has 45% equity interest in NMPSC which management considered to be
material to the Group. The investiment in NPMSC is accounted for using the equity

method in these consolidated financial statements.

The suminarized financial information of NPMSC is shown below., .

2014 2013
Total assets P 15,860,855 P 11,823327
Total liabilities 5,699,029 7,705,459
Total equity 10,161,826 4,117,868
Total revenues 36,353,600 19,659,530
Net profit (loss) 6,043,958 ( 882,132)

‘The Group did not recognize its share of the net profit (loss) of NPMSC in the Group’s
consolidated statements of comprehensive income as the Group’s management deetmned it
to be insignificant.

No dividends were received from NPMSC in 2014 and 2013.

NPMSC is a private company and there ate no quoted prices available for its shares of
stocks.

IAND HELD FOR FUTURE DEVELOPMENT

Land held for future developiment represents the Group’s land property totaling to
44 hectares in Phase 2 and 3 of the Park that is intended for sale once developed.

The Group’s land held for future development was used as collatcral for the Group’s
installment payable with LBP [see Note 17.2(2)].

OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

The composition of this account as of December 31 is shown below.

Notes 2014 2013

Refundable rental deposits 26.3 P 172,226,696 P 180,951,286
Advances for future

investment in a

joint ventute 67,750,000 - '
Dirydocking costs — net 58,281,453 46,588,245
Deferted minimum

lease payments 34,379,811 34,554,625
Restricted time deposits 6 1,263,795 1,263,795
Othets 2,208,763 6,857,099

P 336110518 P2 270,215,050

\Yis
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Refundable rental deposits represent deposits of the Group for the lease of various parcels
of land. These deposits are refundable at the end of the term of agreement and are
measured at amortized cost. The fair values on initial recognition of the lease deposits
were determined by calculating the present value of the estimated firture cash flows
anticipated until the end of the lease terms using the matket interest rate of compatable
financial instrument at the inception of the lease. Meanwhile, interest on subsequent
amottization of rental deposits using effective interest method amounted to P0.6 million *
both in 2014 and 2013, and P1.2 million in 2012, and is presented as part of Hinance
Income in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income (see Note 22.2).

The excess of the principal amount of the rental deposit over its present value is
recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position as Deferred Minimum Lease
Payments. Rent expense on subsequent amortization of the deferred minimum lease
payments amounted to P0.9 million, P0.8 million and P1.4 million in 2014, 2013 and 2012,
respectively, and is presented as part of Rent under Selling and Administrative Expenses in
the consolidated statements of comprehensive income (see Note 21).

Advances for future investment in a joint venture represent the Group’s payment to a
certain third party for the Group’s partial share in the investment in future joint venture,
per memorandum of agreement entered into with the said third party. The Group and
the third party, through the future joint venture, are committed to construct a tertninal
and storage fadlity.

Restricted time deposits represent cash deposited with a local bank as an environmental
trust fund set aside in compliance with the requirements of the Depattment of
Environtment and Natural Resources.

Presented below is a reconciliation of the cattying amount at the beginning and end of
2014 and 2013 of drydocking costs.

Notes 2014 2013
Balance at beginning of year P 46,588,245 P 64,433,228
Transfer from construction
in progress 12 53,328,043 -
Additions 8,229,538 26,597,993
Amortization duting the year 202,21 ( 49,764,310) ( 44,420,301)
Disposal ( 100.063) | 22.675)

Balance at end of year P 58281453 D 46583245
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Amortization pertaining to drydocking costs is presented as part of depreciation and
amortization under Cost of Sales and Services in the consolidated statements of
comptehensive income (see Note 20.2).

Drydocking costs are being amortized over two years or until the occurtence of the next
drydocking, whichever comes earlier.

GOODWILL

Goodwill amounting to P84.5 million as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, represents the
excess of acquisition cost over the Group’s share in the fair value of identifiable net assets
of the acquired subsidiaries at the date of the acquisition. In 2012, the Parent Company
assessed that the goodwill pertaining with PGMTI is impaited, hence, full impairment loss
amounting to P1.3 million was recognized.

INTEREST-BEARING LOANS AND BORROWINGS

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings are broken down as follow:

2014 2013
Curtent:

Liabilities under letters of credits

and trust receipts P 3,640,151,291 P 6,777,195674
Installiment and notes payable 2,163,017,181 1,104,979.911
Liabilities under short-term

comnmercial papers 1,942,752,503 -
Banlk loans 364,293,475 55,923,184
Term loans 359,737,069 255,841,741
Obligations under finance lease 7,462,297 7,559,190
Mortgage payable 1,611,934 5.729.784

P8,479,025,750 207,22

Non-cutrent;

Installment and notes payable P 4,319,927,159 P 4,678,622,549
Term loans 1,036,612,418 - 799,004,377
Obligations under finance lease 5,671,371 13,226,187
Mortgage payable 1,406,699 3,553,774
Bank loans - 50,012.446

P5.363,617,647 D5.544500333

17.1 Liabilities under Letters of Credits and Trust Receiprs

The Group avails of lettets of credit (LC) and TR lines with local banks to finance its
purchases of inventories {see Note 8). These short-term trust receipts beart intetests based
on prevailing matket interest tates at an average of 5.00% per annurm in 2014 and 6.50%
per annuim both in 2013 and 2012,
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The Group is required by the banks to tnaintain certain collaterals for the credit line facility
provided to the Group for working capital requiremeats. The collaterals are in the form
of comnpensating deposits and a surety of a stockholder [see Notes 6, 10 and 26.6¢a)].

17.2 Installment and Notes Payable
(2) Installment Loan with LBP ‘ )

On Apuil 16, 2010, the Group availed the P580.0 million loan with LBP. The loan
with LBP was used to refinance the installtnent payable with PEIINMA Group via
take-out of the outstanding installment payable to PHINMA Group. The refinanced
installment payable is payable for seven years with one year grace petiod on principal
and beats an interest rate based on the prevailing LBP rate at the time of availment
subject to quarterly repricing with reference to a three month PDST-F rate plus
minimum spread of 2.5%. The instailment payable with LBP is secured by the
Group’s patcel of land with carrying value of P326.7 million as of

December 31, 2013, which is presented as part of land held for sale (see Note 9) and
land held for future development (see Note 14), and pott expansion facilities with
cattying value of P192.9 million as of December 31, 2013, which is presented as part:
of buildings, depot and pier facilities (see Note 12.4). These securities were teleased
upon full payment of the loan in 2014

The outstanding balance of the prindpal of the loan as of Decernber 31, 2013
amounted to P67.5 million,

(b) Notes Facility Agreement with BDO Group

In 2011, the Group availed of a P750.0 million dlean loan under the notes facility
agreement entered into with BDO Capital & Investment Corporation, Banco De Oro
Unibank, Inc. (BDO), Maybank Philippines, Inc., Robinsons Bank Corporation and
Banco de Oro Unibank, Inc. — Trust and Tnvestment Group. The loag-term loan
amounting to P700.0 million with interest rate of 7.35% annually is payable on
August 24, 2016 and the remaintng P50.0 million with interest rate of 7.66% is
payable on August 23, 2018,

The outstanding halance of the principal of the notc as of Decemher 31, 2014 and
2013 amounted to P727.5 million and P742.0 million, tespectively.

(c) Omnibus Loan and Secutity Agreement (OLSA) with PBComm

On February 10, 2012, the Group entered into a loan agreement with PBComm
amounting to P107.0 million to partly finance the double hulling and drydocking of a
vessel owned by the Group. In February and May 2012, PBComm released the loan,
amounting to P65.0 million and P42.0 million, respectively. The loan is subject to
annual interest ratc of 9.5% and is payable in 36 equal monthly instailments with one
quarter grace petiod from date of each release.

The loan is secured hy a chattel mortgage on two of the tankers (MT Chelsea
Resolute and MT Ernesto Uno) of the Group with net book value amounting o
P332.1 million and P317.5 million as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively
(see Note 12.4), )
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The loan agreement requires the Group to maintain a debt-to-equity ratio of not
more than 4:1. As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Group has complied with its
debt covenants with the bank.

The outstanding balance of the principal of the note as of December 31, 2014 and
2013 amounted to P8.0 million and P41.2 million, respectively.

(d) OLSA with BDO — MT Chelsea Thelma

On April 26, 2011, the Group entered into a MOA with China Shipbuilding &
Exports Corporation for the importation of one vnit of oil tanker (MT Chelsea
Thelma) in the amount of US$19.8 million.

In connection with the MOA, the Group entered into an OLSA amounting to
1US$14.5 million with BDO, the proceeds of which was nsed to partly finance the
importation of the vessel. The loan is payable into 27 consecutive equal quatterly
principal installments starting in August 2012. The loan is subject to interest .
computed at one-year LIBOR plus applicable masgin of 3.50% per annum.

The loan is secured by a chattel mortgage on certain tankers (MT Chelsea Thelma
and Vela) of the Group with a net carrying amount of P1,100.4 million and
P1,059.8 million as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Related deht issuance costs amounted to P8.2 million of which P1.4 million and

P2.3 million was amortized in 2014 and 2013, respectively, using effective intercst rate
of 5.02%. Amortized debt issuance costs wete recognized as part of interest expense
on bank loans under Finance Costs under the Other Charges (Income) account in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income (see Note 22.1). The unamortized
debt 1ssuance costs are included as past of the current and non-cutrent portion of thé
related loan.

The outstanding balance of the principal of the note as of December 31, 2014 and
2013 amounted to P404.4 million and P496.9 million, respectively.

(e) Convertible Notes Facility Agreement with BDO

On July 11, 2012, the Patent Company executed 2 Convertible Notes Facility
Agreement worth P500.0 million with warrants offering amounting to P180.0 million
with BDO. The loan is subject to annua) intetest rate of 7.6% and is payable
quatterly in arrears over its three years term. The issuance of the convertible note is
part of the Group’s plan to raise long-term capital, to refinance short-terr debt and
finance capital expendituzes.

BDO is granted the option to convert all ot any pottion of the unpaid principal
amount of the notes held by it into the conversion shares exercisable at any time
upon wiitten notice by BDO to the Parent Company specifying the tme and date of
the conversion. Also, BDO has the option to elect one nominee to the Parent
Company’s BOD which option may be exercised anytime after signing date and on or
before conversion date.

g%/
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For and in consideration of the subsctiption of BDO to the convertible notes issued
by the Patent Company, the latter also granted the former the right to subscribe to the
wattants (o be issued by the Parent Company which is convertible into common
shates of the Parent Company up to the aggregate principal amount of P180.0 million.
The availment of the convertible note and the issuance of the warrant were approveqd
by the Parent Company’s stockholders dusiag a special stockholders’ meeting held on
September 6, 2012. The Patent Company’s stockholders 2lso authorized the
execution, deltvery and performance of Subscription Agreement between the Parent
Company and BDO in relation to the issuance of the warrants.

The exercise price of the option to convert the note to the Parent Company's
common shates and the warrant is equivalent to a determined price base plus a
premium of fifteen peccent. The exetcise based used was the 30-day
volume-weighted average price of the Patent Company’s shate on the PNX PM
Equity HP page of Bloomberg from May 24, 2012 to July 5, 2012 which is equal to
P8.3 per share. The exercise petiod consists of a two-year petiod commencing on the
third anniversary date of the convertible notes issue date and expiring five yeats :
thereafter.

Considering that a fixed number of shares will be issued for options and warrants, the
wartants and options may qualify as an equity instrument to be recorded as a separate
component in the equity in the Group’s consolidated financizl statements. The
Group’s management , however, assesses that at the date of the initial recognition, the
equity component has no value since the interest rate to be charged by the lender on
the convettible note with warrants is similar to the interest rate of the note had it
been issued without conversion options and warrants. As such, the fair value of the
hybrid convertible note and the host instrument is the satne resulting in the ol value
of the equity component at the date of initia] recognition. .
Minimusn financial ratios to maintain are as follows: (i} debt to equity ratio not to
exceed 3:1; (if} current ratio not to fall below 1:1 and (iii) debt service coverage ratio
not to be less than 1.5:1.

The outstanding balance of the principal of the note as of both December 31, 2014
and 2013 amounted to P500.0 million.

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Group has complied with its debt

covenants,

() Notes Facility Agréement with China Banking Cotpotation and
Pentacapital Investment Cotporation

On November 8, 2012, the Patent Company entered into a notes facility agreement
with China Banking Corporation and Pentacapital Investment Corporation totaling
P2,500.0 million. The loan is subject to a fixed annual interest rate of 7.75% which is
payable in twenty quarterly payments. The net proceeds of the loan were used by the
Parent Company for the roll out of the retails stations, for debt financing, to support
capital expenditures and for other general cotporate purposes.

A2
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By virtue of the notes facility agreement, the Parent Company affirms that it shall
maintain the listing of its common shates with PSE and shall not declare ot pay any
dividends to stockholders (other than dividends payable solely in shares of its capital
stock) or retain, retire, purchase or otherwise acquite any class of its capital stock, or
make any other capital or other asset distribution to its stockholders, unless all .
payments due under the notes are current and updated.

Minimum financial ratios to maintain are as follows: {1) debt to equity ratio not to
exceed 3:1; (ii) cutrent ratio not to fall below 1:1 and (ii1) debst service coverage ratio
not to be less than 1.5:1.

The outstanding balance of the principal of the note as of December 31, 2014 and
2013 amounted to P2,476.2 million and P2,468.5 million, respectively.

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Group has complied with its debt

covenants.

(2) OLSA with BDO — MT Chelsea Donatela

In 2013, the Group entered into 2 MOA with China Shipbuilding & FExports
Corporation for the importation of one unit oil tanker (MT' Chelsea Donatela) of
PNX - Chelsea in the amount of US$21.2 million (see Note 12.1). In connection
with the acquisition of an oil tank vessel, the Group entered into an OLSA
amounting to US§14 million with BDO, the proceeds of which was used to partly
finance the importation of the vessel. In September 2013, the local bank granted
the loan and released the fitst tranche amounting to US$4 million. The second
tranche amounting to US$10 million was availed of by the Group in 2014. The
loan is payable for a petiod of five years from the initial drawdown date in
US$560,000 quarterly principal installments and any unpaid balance on maturity
date, with two quarter grace period, commencing after the second tranche. The
loan bears effective interest rate of 5.25% per annum., '

.

Interest ncutred on these loans amoeunted to P29.2 million and P3.3 million in
2014 and 2013, respectively, and is shown as part of Finance Costs under QOther
Charges (Income) in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income.
Related debt issuance costs amounted to P9.6 million of which P1.5 million and
P0.1 million was amortized during 2014 and 2013, respectively, using effective
interest rate of 5.58% and 5.54%, respectively. Amortized debt issuance cost was
also recognized as part of the Finance Costs under Other Charges (Income) in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income {see Note 22.1). Unameortized +
debt issuance costs are included as part of the cutrent and non-current portion of
the related loan.

The loan is secured by a cbattel moregage of MT Chelsea Donatela upon its delivery
and registration with the Maritime Industry Authority. The carrying amount of

MT Chelsea Donatela, presented as part of construction in progress, amounted to
P1,091.0 million and P418.6 miilion as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively
(see Note 12.1}.

187,
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The OLSA requires the Group to maintain debt to equity tatio of not more than
1.5:1 and debt coverage ratio (DCR) of at least 1.20, except on drydocking year
where minimum DCR shall be 1.00. The Group filed a waiver with the local bark
for the debt covenaat ratios.

"The outstanding balance of the principal of the note as of December 31, 2014 and
2013 amounted to P595.1 million and P171.6 million, respectively.

(h) Notes Payable

"The Group availed of borrowings from various Jocal banks with interest rates ranging
from 7.0% to 10.2% per annum and will mature within five to seven years. The
loans, which are secured by the Groups’s certain buildings, depot and pier facilities
and hauling and heavy equipment, is payable quarterly (see Note 12.4),

17.3 Liabilities under Short-term Commercial Papers

On October 23, 2014, the SEC approved the Parent Company’s registration, licensing and
issuance of short-term commercial papers up to P2.0 billion. The shott-term commetcial
papers bear annual interest rates ranging from 4.0% to 4.5%, which is alteady deducted in
advance from the proceeds, and will mature on various dates until October 31, 2015. In
2014, the Parent Company fully issued and received the proceeds of the P2.0 billion
short-term commercial papers, which were used to finance the Parent Company’s working
capital requirements.

17.4 Bank Loans

The bank loans tepresent secured loans from local commercial banks for working capital
purposes. The loans bear annual interest rates ranging from 7.5% to 14.0% in 2014 and
2013, subject to monthly repricing. These loans are secured by certain vessels .
(MT Chelsea Intrepid, MT BMI Patricia and MT Esmesto Uno) owned by the Group with
net revalued amount of P212.1 million and P201.9 million as of December 31, 2014 and
2013, respectively (see Note 12.4), and by certain stockholdets [see Note 26.6(5].

17.5 Teon Loans

(2) Tean Loan Agreement (TLA) with Development Bank of the
Philippines (DBP) :

On September 12, 2007, the Group entered into 2a MOA with China Shipbuilding &
Exports Cotporation for the construction of one unit of ofl tacker in the amount of
US$15.0 million. In connection with the MOA, the Group entered into a TLA "
amounting to US§13.0 million with DBP, the proceeds of which shall be exclusively
used to finance the construction of the vessel. In Februaty 2008 and May 2009, DBP
granted the loan amounting to US$3.9 million (P159.0 million) and US$9.1 million
(P432.5 million), respectively. The loan is payable over five years in equal quatterly
principal installments, with one quarter grace pedod on principal, commencing
Neovember 2009 and was subject to 10.5% interest rate per annum. The loan was
fully settled in 2014.
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On October 30, 2014, the Group entered into a loan agreement with DBP amounting
to P140.0 million to finance the drydocking and repairs and maintenance expenses of
MT Chelsea Resolute, MT' Chelsea Cherylyn, MT Chelsea Denise and MT' Jasaan.
‘The loan is subject to annual interest rate of 5.0% and is payable in eight equal
quartetly installments commencing on the first quarter from the initial drawdown.

In addition, the Group obtained P160.0 million loan for CSC’s working capital
requirements. The loan bears a fixed interest rate of 5.0% per annum and is payable
in ten equal quatterly installments commencing on February 28, 2015,

The loan is secured by a cbattel mortgage on certain vessel (MT Chelsea Cherylyn} of
the Group with net book value amounting to P824.8 million 2nd P776.5 million as of
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The loan is also secured by certain
collateral on receivables of CSC and guaranteed by certain stockholders

[see Notes 7 and 26.6(%)].

"The outstanding balance of the principal of the note as of December 31, 2014 and
2013 amounted to P300.0 million and P222.1 million, respectively.

(B) Loan Agreement with Robinsons Bank Cotporation (RBC, )

In 2014, the Group obtained three bank loans from RBC totaling P62.2 million to
finance the drydocking costs of MT Chelsea Denise. The loan is subject to annual
interest rate of 6.3% and is payable in twelve equal monthly installments commencing
on the first month from the initizl drawdown.

The ioan is secured by a chattel mortgage on one of the vessels (MT Chelsea Denise)
of the Group with net book value amounting to P114.7 million and P124.2 million ag
of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, and receivables of CSC from certain
customer (see Note 7). The loan is also guaranteed by certain stockholders

[see Note 26.6(5].

"The outstanding balance of the principal of the note as of December 31, 2014
amounted to P56.8 million.

(c) TLA with Maybaak Philippines, Inc.

On July 18, 2012, the Patent Company signed with Maybank Philippines, Inc. a five
year clean term loan amounting to P300.0 million to be used exclusively for capital
expenditure and permanent working capital. The loan is subject to annual interest
rate of 6.0% and is payable in twenty equal quartetly installments.

In connection with the TLA, alt existing and future advances to the Parent Company
by its stoekholders or related parties are subordinated to the loan. The Parent
Company agrees that any and all of its obligations relative to the TLA shall be settled
first before any of its financial obligations to such shareholders’ and related parties’
advances are paid.



- G0 -

The TLA also requites the Parent Company to maintain debt-to-equity ratio of not
more than 3:1, current ratio of at least 1:1 and debt coverage ratio of at least 1.5.

The outstanding balance of the loan as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 amounted to
P165.0 million and P225.0 million, respectively.

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Group has complied with its debt covenants
with the bank.

On October 28, 2014 and November 4, 2014, the Group obtained unsecured,
interest-bearing loans from Maybank Philippines, Inc. amounting to P100.0 million
for CSC’s working capital requircments.

(d) TLA with Maybank International Ltd,

On November 20, 2012, the Patent Company entered into a TLA amounting to
US$ 24.0 million with Maybank International Ltd. to fund vatious capital
expenditures. The total amount of the Ioan is broken down into US$14.0 million
{tranche 1) which is due in five years and US$10.0 million (ttanche 2) with a term of
three years.

The loan is subject to interest computed at one-year LIBOR plus applicable margin
of 4.25% per annum, or cost of funds plus a matgin of 2.0% per annum, whichever is
higher. Interest payments ate to be serviced quartetly in arrears. Maybank
International Ltd. reserves the right to vaty, at its absolute discretion from time to
time, such rate of interest, which variation may take place by varying the LIBOR or
the margin or spread above the LIBOR, or both.

The TLA also requires the Pagent Company to maintain debt-to-equity ratio of not
morte than 3:1, current ratio of at least 1:1 and debt coverage ratio of at least 1.5, .

Moreover, Maybank International Ltd. has the tight of first tefusal and right to match
any fund raising exercisc that may be requited to refinance the U.S. dollar-denominated
term facility either via follow-on offering of the Parent Company’s shares or a
syndicated term loan.

The balance of the principal of the loan amounted to P451.2 million and
P723.9 million, ttanslated into Philippine Peso using the closing rate as of
December 31, 2014 and 2013, tespectively.

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Group has complied with its debt covenants
with the bank.

L



~61-

(e) TLA with Asia United Bank (AUB)

In 2013, the Group obtained interest-bearing loans from AUB to pattially finance
the acquisition of tug boats amounting to P100 million. The loan bears fixed
nterest rate at 7.00% for the first three years from the initial drawdown date, and
shall be repriced at the end of the third year from the initial drawdown date

(the “Repricing Date”). The repriced rate shall be based on the relevant

2Y PDST-F as of the Repricing Date, plus a spread of 2.00% subject to a floor of
7.00%. The loan is payable in 18 quarterly installments over a period of five years.
The first payment will commence on the third interest payment date froim the initial
drawdown date. The last quarterly installment of the loan is due on

November 6, 2018,

The interest-bearing loans amounted to P88.9 million and P100.0 million as of
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, of which P22.2 million and

P11.1 midlion, respectively, was presented under current liabilities section in the
consolidated staternents of financial position.

Intetest expense related to the loans amounted to P7.3 million and P1.1 million in
2014 and 2013, respectively, and is shown as part of Finance Cost under Other
Charges (Income) in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income.

Cettain trade receivables amounting to P20.2 million and P8.2 million as of
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, were assigned to secure the payment of
these interest-hearing loans (see Note 7).

The outstanding balance of the principal of the note as of December 31, 2014 and
2013 amounted to P88.9 million and P100.0 million, respectively.

(9 Loan Agreement with Multinational Investinent Bancorporation (MIB)

On December 29, 2014, the Group obtained an unsecured, interest-bearing loans
from MIB totaling to P166.8 million for the CSC’s working capital requirements.
The loan is subject to annual interest rate of 4.3% and is payable in 30 days.

The outstanding balance of the principal of the note as of December 31, 2014
amounted to P166.8 million.

17.6 Obligations under Finance Lease

The finance lease liability has an effective interest rate of 5.1% which is equal to the rate
implicit in the lease contract (see Note 30.5). Lease payments are made on a monthly
basis.

17.7 Mortgage Payable

The mortgage payable represents sccured loans which bear interest rates ranging from
7.6% to 11.4% per annum, and with tetrns ranging from 18 months to 36 months. The
mortgages are secured by certain service vehicles of the Group, presented as part of
Property and Equipment account in the consolidated statements of financial position
{see Note 12.4).

ot
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17.8 Credit Line

The Parent Company has an available credit line of P16.3 billion under LC/TR. These
lines obtained from various banks are being utilized by the Parent Company for
procutement of inventories both local and foreign. The credit line is secured by the

following:

(a)  Assignment of future receivables;

.

(5) Suretyship of PPHI and pledge of its share in the Parent Company amounting

to P46.9 million (at P1 par vahue);

{¢)  Joint several signature of certain stockholders; and,
(d) Negative pledge over the remaining shares of PPHI in Parent Company in favor

of the bank amounting to P1.1 billion,

Interest expense for 2014, 2013 and 2012 presented as part of Finance Costs in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income amounted to P728.2 million, P617.5
million and P'467.4 million (see Note 22.1), respectively, net of the capitalized borrowing
cost of P70.7 million, P71.4 million and P77.8 million as of December 31, 2014, 2013 and

2012, respectively (see Note 12.3).

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
This account consists of:
Notes

Trade payables:
Third parties
Related parties 26.3, 26.5

Accrued expenses

Retention payable

Advances from customers

Income tax payable

Non-trade payables

Others 30.8

.

2014 2013
P3,375,001,069 P 744,975,896
9,156,631 1,981 597
3,384,247,700 746,957,493
211,559,670 362,111,496
42,699,144 106,903,516
19,003,143 090,926,769
4,236,452 9,608,080
2,986,179 22,462,466
49,837,707 31.457.507
P3,734,569,995 P.1.570.427.327

Accrued expenses mostly pertain to payables to vatious contractors for the construction of
retail stations that remain unpaid at the end of the year. In addition, this comprises
amounts to be paid in relation to charter hite cost, repairs and maiotenance, interest

expense azising from loans and professional fees.

Retention payable is the amount withheld by the Group from its contractors for the
constructon of buildings, depot and pier facilities. The amount of retention, which is
equivalent to ten percent of the total contract price, s payable upon the completion and
turnover by the contractor of a construction project and the acceptance thereof by the

Group.
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Advances from customers pertain to the advance payment of the various customers for
theit fuel purchases. Advances from customers are measured at the amount of cash
tecetved from the customers and are offset against trade receivables once the related
sales transactions are consummated.

OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

This account consists of:

Note 2014 2013 °
Secutity deposits P 158,325,351 P 275962723
Uneamed rent 48,922,071 49,726,176
Post-employment defined
benefit obligation 232 76,396,973 51.100.685

P__283,644,395 P 376789.584

Security deposits represent deposits received from dealers for the lease of retail stations
and equipment that are installed in retail stations. These deposits are refundable at the end
of the lease terms and atre measured at amottized cost. The fair values on initial
recognition of the security deposits wete determined by calculating the present value of the
estimated future cash flows anticipated until the end of the lease terms using the market
interest rate of comparable financial instrument ar the inception of the lease. Meanwhile,
interest on subsequent amortization of rental deposits using effective interest method
amounted to P1.0 million, P0.8 million and P1.0 million in 2014, 2013 and 2012,
respectively, and is presented as part of Finance Costs in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income {see Note 22.1).

The excess of the principal amount of the secutity deposit over its present value is
recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position as unearned rent.
Subsequent amortization of the unearned rent amounted to P1.1 million, P0.8 million and
P0.9 million in 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively, and is presented as patt of Rent and
Storage Income in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income.
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20. COST OF SALES AND SERVICES
This account is composed of the following as of December 31:

Notes 2014 2013 2012

Cost of fuzels and

lubticants sold 2041
Cost of services 20.2
Cost of real estate sold 21

P 30,730,192,895 P 39,785623,659 P 31,444.710.716
658,586,006 460,109,294 517,038,697
15,725,034 2433131 -

26.2 P 31.404,503,935 P 40248166084 P 31,961.749.413

20.1 Cost of Fuels and Lubricants Sold

The cost of fuels and Iubricants sold are broken down as follows: .

Note

2014

2013

2012

Inventores at
beginning of yeat 8
Net purchases

P 3,812,532,673 P 3,688,759,676

P 2,132,622,405

duting the yeat 29,788.489.291 39.909.396,656 332.,000,847.987
Goods available for sale 33,601,021,964 43,598.156,332 35,133,470,392
Inventories at

end of year 8 (__2.870,829.069) (3812532673 (___ 3,688 .759.676)

20.2 Cost of Services

P 30,730,192,895 P_39.785.623 659

P 33444 710,716

Details of cost of services are shown below:

Notes 2014 2013 2012

Depreciation and _

amortization 12.6,15 251,458,416 P 194,146,483 T 147,371,900
Salaries and

employee benefits 72,059,949 50,522,176 29,065,941
Charter hire fees 69,693,756 34,795,266 71,143,057
Repairs and )

maintenance 49,642,029 24474791 19,611,488
Port expenses 45,644,274 23,934,889 58,257,723
Bunkering 42,813,138 11,540,954 106,973,168
Professional fees 35,960,794 43,980,083 42,067,106
Tnsutance 36,261,986 34,095,778 25,329,791
Service fees 26.5 33,584,354 20,611,959 -
Taxes and licenses 11,384,037 11,593,974 7,745,126
Outside services 1,772,671 1,487,408 -
Secutity services 1,755,920 1,644,570 1,210,469
Fuel, gas and lubricants 119,716 4,798,629 4,674,245
Others 2.834.436 2472434 3.288.683

P 658,586,006 I 460,109,294 P 517,038,697
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21. COSTS AND EXPENSES BY NATURE

The details of the Group’s costs and expenses by nature are shown below.

Notes 2014 2013 2012

Cost of sales:

Fuels P 30,543,127,456 P 39,571,822572 P 31,046,564,548

Lubricants 187,065,439 213,801,087 398,146,168
Depreciation

and amortization 12,15 660,281,915 528,400,077 405,815,569
Rent 15,263,303 390,370,058 364,369,594 240,876,571
Salaries and

employee benelits 231 329,362,174 287,613,201 208,734,347
Taxes and licenses 149,610,326 118,231,983 132,946,735
. Advertising and '

promotions 123,571,860 176,373,387 84,473,675
Repairs and maintenance 117,868,813 69,675,294 61,023,908
Rebhates 112,198,227 49,470,808 40,802,132
Setvice fees 105,133,477 81,910,722 81,392.862
Tnsurance 85,836,811 62,357,917 49,923 821
Charter hire fees 69,693,786 34,795,266 33,546,169
Fuel, oil and abricants 54,440,905 33,792,075 49,339,252
Utilities 51,773,260 49,221 472 33,806,011
Professional fees 49,116,948 92,185,195 85,399,457
Port expenses 45,644,274 23,559,968 59,299,038
Security fees 45,583,946 33,738,550 26,108,756
Bunkering 42,813,138 13,420,044 62,899,266
Travel and transportation 40,475,571 40,005,732 35,184,779
Outside services 31,638,406 6,853,856 9,585,134
Freight charges 16,800,518 56,992,995 50,386,551
Representation 16,729,142 18,658,934 12,761,925
Cost of real estate sold 20 15,725,034 2,433,131 -
Office supplies 10,052,801 10,668,819 12,775,030
Sales incentives 5,491,456 17,133,225 960,783
Trucking charges - 267,300,218 130,451,226
Handling and '

processing fees - - 9,285,094
Miscellaneous 26.8 20,924,371 14,840,100 72922212

P_33,321,330,112 P 42230626222 P_33435.411,019




